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Income and expenditure 
(£)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011*

Turnover 82.0m 89.5m 104.8m 106.3m 76.0m

Turnover on general needs 
housing

44.0m 42.5m 40.5m 35.7m 34.0m

Surplus/(deficit) before tax (15.1)m 6.2m 15.0m 13.1m (0.7)m

Net interest payable 15.5m 15.7m 15.9m 13.2m 12.6m

Balance sheet (£) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011*

Tangible fixed assets housing 717.2m 624.0m 623.2m 607.4m 567.0m

Investment in new housing 45.0m 32.7m 21.6m 29.6m 82.3m

Total expenditure on repairs 
and improvements

8.3m 7.6m 6.9m 6.5m 6.8m

Grants received 11.7m 7.9m 7.1m 2.0m 29.8m

Bank borrowings 309.3m 451.5m 483.3m 478.7m 442.0m

Bond 150.0m - - - -

Accommodation (units) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011*

Total social housing stock 
owned

9,599 9,593 9,483 9,426 8,878

Total social housing stock 
owned and managed

11,125 11,124 11,018 10,979 10,431

KPI data 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011*

Interest cover 181% 158% 161% 157% 149%

Net debt per unit (£) 51,418 46,394 48,510 52,020 53,130

General needs tenants arrears 
as % of rent due

2.59% 2.23% 2.77% 2.99% 3.52%

Void turnaround (days) 17.1 15.4 14.0 15.1 16.3

% of all repairs completed on 
time

98.2% 98.9% 98.8% 98.9% 98.5%

Group Consolidated Highlights

*Restated for component accounting.

5 Year Summary
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Over the last year we have 
been celebrating Swan Housing 
Association’s 20th anniversary.  We 
held a variety of events with our 
staff, stakeholders, residents and 
customers to recall the highlights of 
the last 20 years and to put in place 
plans for our future. 

The last year was notable for a 
number of successes including:

• Completing the final phase 
of the regeneration scheme 
at Bow Cross in the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets and 
winning two awards at the 
prestigious London Planning 
Awards

• Securing a credit rating of 
AA- from Standard & Poor’s, 
restructuring our bank facilities 
and issuing a £150m bond

• Embedding our governance 
structure and securing a 
top rating on governance 
and viability from the social 
housing regulator

• Becoming one of the first 
Housing Associations to 
secure a Gold SHIFT award 
for our environmental 
performance

• Completing the first phase of 
the Blackwall Reach project in 
the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets which will ultimately 
create a community of nearly 
1600 new homes, community 
facilities and commercial 
premises 

• Launching NU Living,  an 
exciting new brand for our 
private residential housing 
sales activities

We have also completed the first 
year of our ambitious three-year 
corporate strategy.  We are ahead 
of schedule with our plans to build 
in excess of 1,000 new homes, 
invest 10,000 hours in community 
engagement activities and invest 

£100m, in collaboration with 
our partners, to regenerate the 
communities we serve.  

Our underlying financial performance 
remains strong and we have seen an 
improvement in our operating surplus 
this year.  The surplus for the Group 
was affected by the exceptional costs 
associated with the restructure of our 
bank facilities and the bond issue, 
however, we anticipate that this will 
deliver significant benefits in future 
years.

We continue to see a substantial 
return from our commercial activities 
which include the development, 
construction and sale of private 
residential housing, property 
management and domiciliary care.  
During the year our commercial 
activities generated a turnover of 
£16.7m and reported profits of £5.5m 
before Gift Aid and tax.  To date our 
commercial activities have generated 
£44.1m which has been reinvested in 
developing new social housing and 
supporting our communities.

As a Board we have followed 
the development of the revised 
regulatory framework by the Social 
Housing Regulator closely and have 
put in place plans to ensure our 
continued compliance.  Furthermore, 
we have made plans to adopt the 
new National Housing Federation 
2015 code of governance early in the 
new financial year. 

The past year has not been without 
challenges for us and our residents. 
Welfare reform is into its second 
year and the planned changes over 
the coming year have the potential 
to significantly impact on us and our 
residents.  We continue to work hard 
to mitigate the impact these changes 
might have on Swan, as well as 
supporting our residents through the 
complexities of welfare reform.

I am delighted with our achievements 
over the last year.  These would 

Valerie Owen OBE
Chair - Swan Housing Association Limited

not have been possible without 
the contribution from our staff, our 
partners and our stakeholders.  I 
look forward to being able to report 
another year of successes in our next 
accounts.

Chair’s Introduction
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The Swan Group (‘Swan’) was 
formed in 1994 and now owns and 
manages over 11,000 properties in 
East London and Essex. 

Swan’s principal activities are: 

• providing affordable homes 
for people who cannot afford 
to rent or buy in the open 
market, including affordable 
rent and shared ownership 
products

• providing a general needs 
housing service and 
services for the Association’s 
leaseholders

• providing key worker 
accommodation

• investing in the community 
and involving residents

• providing supported housing 
services

• regenerating and developing 
sustainable communities

• providing care and support 
services

• providing property 
management services

Our mission is to ‘deliver effective 
services, enterprising solutions and 
exemplary homes and communities’.

Principal Activities Our strategy
Our Corporate Strategy has been 
developed by the Board and 
Executive Team in consultation with 
customers and staff. It provides a 
framework for action over the period 
to 2017.  We have four strategic 
themes which we are working 
towards:

Happy Customers

Achieving excellent customer 
satisfaction is central to all we 
do. Customers want a quick 
and personal service. We have 
developed a standard methodology 
for measuring customer satisfaction 
across our activities, maintained 
our customer service excellence 
accreditation and, in partnership 
with Axis, put in place measures 
to achieve our stretching customer 
satisfaction targets.

The Local Partner

We have developed successful 
partnerships across a wide 
geographical area including 17 local 
authorities critical to us if we are to 
continue to make a real difference 
to communities and to grow.  We 
have a clear engagement plan which 

drives our communications, media 
interaction, public affairs and public 
relations.  We continue to deliver 
complementary services to our local 
partners. 

Fit for the Future

We have real opportunities to 
build on our unique skills and 
successful track record in the 
geographical areas in which we 
operate. Developing the right skills 
and structure for Swan will help us 
capitalise on key opportunities as 
they arise. Ensuring we can continue 
to make a return on our assets will 
enable us to deliver more resources 
for us to invest in the communities 
we serve.   

We have a clear Value for Money 
strategy that will deliver additional 
resources, we have completed 
the restructure of our funding 
arrangements so they meet our 
strategic aspirations and we remain 
on track to deliver in excess of £25m 
of additional resources from our 
commercial activities over the life of 
the strategy. 
 

Motivated People

We believe if staff are engaged and 
motivated they will enjoy achieving 
even better results which will improve 
performance, enhance our reputation 
and cement our position as partner of 
choice.  

We developed a clear People 
Strategy,  participated in the ‘Sunday 
Times Top 100 Best Companies 
to Work For’ and been accredited 
as ‘One to Watch’. We launched 
our ‘Hearts and Minds’ programme 
to ensure we maximise staff 
engagement, achieve buy-in to 
corporate objectives and create a 
consistent Swan culture.
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We will continue to be a leading 
regeneration and development 
agency in Essex and East London.  
We have a pipeline in excess of 
3,000 homes. Over the coming years 
we anticipate making substantial 
progress on the large scale 
regeneration schemes at Blackwall 
Reach and Beechwood Village.

We have plans to continue the trend 
of positive improvements in customer 
satisfaction that we have seen 
over recent years. We have made 
appropriate provision for the impact 
of welfare reform but we will continue 
to monitor the impact these changes 
might have on us and our residents.

In July 2015 the new Government 
announced its Budget. Included in 
the announcement were reductions 
in benefit caps, changes to Pay to 
Stay, a review of lifetime tenancies 
and rent reductions of 1% each year 
for four years.  Prior to the budget 
the Government had also announced 
an extension of Right to Buy.  We 
have reviewed the impact of these 
announcements with particular 
focus on the impact of the proposed 
rent reductions.  We have put in 
place plans which we believe will 
substantially mitigate the impact of 
these changes on our business plan.  
We anticipate that we will be able to 
continue to deliver the objectives set 
out in our Corporate Strategy and will 
be well positioned to take advantage 
of the opportunities that may arise 
from these changes. 

We will continue to grow our 
commercial care and property 
management businesses with an 
expectation that these will make a 
substantial contribution to the Group 
in the future.

Future 
Developments

Operating and Financial Review

The Board is pleased to report a 
surplus before tax and exceptional 
items of £9.9m for the year. 
This includes another significant 
contribution from our commercial 
activities which delivered a profit 
of £5.5m (2014: £3.7m) before Gift 
Aid and tax. Turnover at £82.0m 
(2014: £89.5m) was in line with 
expectations. The variance year on 
year is attributable to a lower volume 
of private residential homes sales.

The result for the year, being a deficit 
of £15.1m, has been affected by 
£24.9m of exceptional costs incurred 
in March 2015 associated with the 
restructure of our £480m syndicated 
loan facility and the issuance of a 
£250m bond.

The restructure of the syndicated 
facility resulted in one member of 
the syndicate, the Co-Op Bank, 
being repaid in full and the remaining 
three syndicate members moving to 
bilateral arrangements.  As part of 
this restructure, the Group issued a 
£250m bond, of which £100m was 
retained.  The bond was issued with 
a coupon of 3.625% and a term of 
33 years. Swan Housing Capital plc 

Business Review

was set up to issue the bond and is 
a 100% owned subsidiary of Swan 
Housing Association Limited. Security 
for the bond has been provided in the 
form of housing assets.

This restructure and refinancing has 
created additional funding headroom, 
removed some of the more onerous 
provisions in the syndicated bank 
facility and is expected to be 
significantly value enhancing in both 
the short and medium term.  

Further details of the exceptional 
costs are included in note 8a and the 
projected benefits of the restructure 
are explained in our Value for Money 
self-assessment.

The Group balance sheet remains 
strong with Consolidated Funds 
increasing from £262.2m to £315.0m. 
Interest cover and net debt per unit, 
our key loan covenants, continue to 
meet our lenders’ requirements. 

We continue to perform in the 
upper quartile when benchmarked 
against our peers in terms of void 
turnaround and have seen significant 
improvements in tenant arrears over 
the last five years.
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How we approach Value for Money
Definition

For us, Value for Money means obtaining the best value from our available resources to allow us to deliver better 
services, more homes and effective communities both in terms of quantity and quality and the social value provided.  
In summary the key elements are:

• A clear Corporate Strategy on what we want to achieve as a business
• Ensuring we invest in the right assets including Human Resources at the right price
• Ensuring our services and outputs are customer driven and that there is efficient and effective delivery
• Achieving the right outcomes for Swan and then evaluating success, including social value
• Reinvesting operating surpluses, Gift Aid from surpluses on our commercial activities and Value for 

Money gains to achieve more

Value for Money (VfM) and Our Performance

Our Value for Money Strategy

Our Value for Money Strategy, which is reviewed regularly, is an overarching strategy that links in with our Corporate 
Plan and other strategies such as the Procurement Strategy, Portfolio Management Strategy and the Asset 
Management Strategy.  These strategies detail: 

How we make decisions on the use of resources to deliver our Corporate Strategy through:

• The Group Investment Process which standardises our approach to appraising investment decisions and 
ensures we consider trade offs and opportunity costs

• The zero based budgeting process which challenges every aspect of our expenditure
• Our 30 year business planning process which details the long term impact on the business of our 

decisions

Operating and Financial Review

Cumulative Gift Aid - Delivered and Planned

We have generated £44.1m of cash from our commercial activities cumulatively to March 2015, which we have 
reinvested in our services, our properties and our regeneration activities. Our business plan forecasts a further £51.1m 
will be delivered over the next three years. Gift Aid receipts vary year to year based on the sales of Swan New Homes 
and are in line with the Board approved business plan.

£33m
2012/13

£38m
2013/14

£44m
2014/15

£95m
2017/18

£55m
2015/16

£70m
2016/17

Where the Group’s cash came from in 2014/15 Where the Group’s cash was spent in 2014/15
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How we monitor the return on our assets and how we will maximise that return in the future through:

• The Portfolio Management Strategy which sets out how we monitor the return on our assets down to the 
lowest granular level and then how we will appraise the various options including possible disposal, stock 
swaps, tenure change 

• Our financial reporting monitors operating surpluses relative to the value of our assets on key asset groups, 
our headline performance is detailed in the table below:

2012/2013

Operating 
Surplus

£K

Value of 
assets*

£K

Return on 
Assets 

%

20,668 501,535 4.1%

970 46,850 2.1%

3,322 44,489 7.5%

2013/2014

Operating 
Surplus

£K

Value of 
assets*

£K

Return on 
Assets %

%

26,512 507,908 5.2%

1,279 55,486 2.3%

4,204 43,096 9.8%

Operating and Financial Review

2014/2015

Operating 
Surplus

£K

Value of 
assets*

£K

Return on 
Assets %

%

26,656 579,530 4.6%

1,256 53,950 2.3%

4,144 41,710 9.9%

How we report our performance and scrutinise what we do to ensure we continue to deliver Value for Money 
through:

• Our reporting framework including our balanced scorecards which monitor the key performance 
indicators across the Group

• Our standardised project appraisal process
• Scrutiny of performance at Departmental, Senior Management Team, Executive Team, Committee and 

Board level
• A robust budgeting and forecasting process

General 
Needs**

Shared 
Ownership

NHS key 
worker

* Value of assets are based on net book value which is cost less depreciation and grant received plus revaluation
** Revaluation increased this year due to lower discount rate

How we understand the costs and outcomes of delivering specific services through:

• Benchmarking our performance against 30 providers in the East of England and London with similar sized 
stock levels
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What we have done:
• We have sought to maximise the availability of affordable homes for local residents and in the last three years we 

have built 477 affordable and social rented homes
• We have built 564 homes for sale in Swan New Homes generating cash of £41.1m which will be reinvested in 

affordable and social rented homes and investment in service improvements

Operating and Financial Review

Assessing our Comparative Costs and Absolute Performance 

Our Approach: to assess our performance against 30 other housing providers operating in the London and Eastern 
regions with similar sized stock.  We use the benchmark data to identify areas for improvement and set targets to 
deliver our objective of top quartile performance in all key areas.

What we have done:

• We understand our performance and how we compare to other housing providers: 

What we will do next:
• We have plans to build a further 477 affordable and social rented homes over the next three years 
• We have plans to sell 741 new homes which will generate cash of £51.1m over the next three years 
• By utilising our NPV information we are working on a programme of stock rationalisation, tenure change and stock 

swaps  

Our Value for Money Framework
To help us in the delivery of our strategy we have developed a Value for Money framework which sets out the key 
areas of activity and allows us to record the Value for Money outcomes in a structured way.  Our summary self-
assessment follows the structure of the Value for Money framework.

Value for Money Self Assessment and plans for the future

Maximising the Return on Assets

Our Approach: to maximise our return on assets through the effective implementation of our Portfolio and Asset 
Management Strategies alongside the Group Investment Strategy.

Total cost per property 
for:

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Cost 
Trend

Quartile Top 
Quartile

Top 
Quartile 

trend

Housing management £451.78 £443.42 £418.52 2 £336.56

Rent arrears £183.03 £191.65 £175.47 4 £110.15

Resident participation £53.92 £49.98 £45.01 2 £42.63

Anti-social behaviour £55.16 £56.66 £60.33 2 £51.39

Tenancy management £103.49 £95.40 £90.28 2 £87.52

Lettings £56.17 £49.73 £47.43 2 £46.95

Estate services £224.39 £236.86 £196.86 2 £169.62

Average repair cost £69.06 £64.60 £92.55 1 £103.09

Repairs and void works £479.67 £428.88 £445.76 1 £638.93
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Operating and Financial Review

Customer Satisfaction Results

STAR survey: Are you 
satisfied:

2012 2013 Benchmark 2014 Target 2015

With the overall service 
provided by Swan?

83.5% 85.0% 87.0% 74.6% 80.0%

With the way Swan deal with 
repairs?

75.5% 75.9% 80.1% 65.8% 75.0%

That Swan listens to your views 
and acts upon them?

69.0% 65.4% 72.0% 56.9% 64.0%

With the quality of your home? 85.1% 79.8% 83.1% 78.8% 84.0%

With your neighbourhood as a 
place to live?

81.0% 78.9% 86.3% 78.8% 82.0%

That your rent provides Value 
for Money?

78.4% 79.8% 82.0% 71.3% 76.0%

That your service charges 
provide Value for Money?

52.4% 57.9% 76.0% 48.5% 52.0%

• We understand our performance and how we compare to other housing providers
• We know that eight of the nine cost indicators perform in quartile one and two compared with other providers
• We have reduced costs against six of the nine cost indicators.  During the same time those performing in the top 

quartile have seen costs increase against seven of the nine cost indicators
• We have reduced our rent arrears cost per property but they remain high in our peer group, however, our 

collection rates continue to perform in the top quartile 
• Our overhead costs at 10.51% have improved by a quartile this year and we continue to compare favourably to 

organisations with similar development programmes in our peer group
• We have consulted our residents about the fall in satisfaction levels and are implementing an improvement plan to 

address the concerns raised
• We have analysed our management costs using the Global accounts data and we are performing in quartile one 

within the 5,000-10,000 home banding

What we will do next:
• Maintain our performance where our costs are low relative to others and implement the actions from the service 

reviews conducted in the last year to improve performance where our costs are relatively high
• Continue to review our overhead costs and build on the improvements delivered this year 
• Continue to strive to improve customer satisfaction and implement the actions arising from our review of the 

repairs service.
• Review our income and arrears service to ensure the trend of reducing costs whilst maintaining top quartile 

collection performance is maintained

Effective Procurement

Our Approach: to deliver the Group’s priorities through a straightforward, professional, cost effective and focused 
approach to sustainable procurement.  Our Procurement Strategy builds on past performance and seeks to ensure 
that our procurement activities deliver our corporate objectives by demonstrating Value for Money, customer focus, 
rising standards, efficiency, compliance and social value. 
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• We have invested our 2014/15 savings, which are in line with our forecast, in the services detailed in the pie chart 
on page 14

• Our anticipated savings will be used to further enhance our services and contribute towards our development and 
regeneration projects

Planning our Funding

Our Approach: to deliver the aims and objectives of our Corporate Strategy, whilst maintaining a prudent fully funded 
Business Plan. To maintain a prudent balance between mitigating interest rate risk and minimising interest rate 
costs.  To generate our own resources from commercial activities which will ultimately be reinvested in new social and 
affordable housing and service improvements. 

Operating and Financial Review

Managing our Finances

Our Approach: to prioritise our expenditure against the delivery of our Corporate Strategy.  We have a zero-based 
budget setting process that ensures that budgets are allocated fairly and based on the needs of the organisation in the 
delivery of the Corporate Strategy.  Each year budget holders are required to present their budget requests adopting a 
zero based approach setting out their requirements to deliver increased performance.  

What we have done:
• Prepared a zero based budget and monitored our performance on a monthly basis
• Prepared a full reforecast during the year which identified that the Group was on target to deliver its budgeted 

surplus before exceptional costs associated with loan restructure and bond issue
• Continued to produce balanced scorecards to manage our performance with a focus on key performance 

indicators in the areas of Strategic, Risk, Financial, Customer, Internal Processes and Learning & Growth

What we have done:
• Delivered the £277k of forecast savings for 2014/15
• Restructured our syndicated loan facility
• Attained a credit rating of AA- with Standard and Poor’s
• Issued a £250m bond with £100m retained
• Achieved an interest rate of 3.625% on our bond, one of the lowest rates in the sector to date
• Achieved a bond interest rate significantly lower than our business plan assumption of 4.5% which equates to a 

£1.3m saving per annum and £43m over the 33 year life of the bond

 What we will do next:
• Develop a strategy that aims to issue the £100m of retained bonds when market conditions are favourable

Looking back 
(savings gained)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
£ £ £

197,894 204,500 198,196

5,000 37,249 55,351

30,000 172,145 184,517

232,894 413,894 438,064

Projecting Forward 
(anticipated savings)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£ £ £

197,306 177,071 171,999

41,500 30,000 0

319,263 204,732 218,205

558,069 411,803 390,204

Total 
savings

£
1,146,966

169,100

1,128,863

2,444,929

Housing/Repairs and 
Maintenance

Facilities/Maintenance/
Utilities

Back office (Audit/Insurance/
Legal/H&S

Total

Procurement Savings

 What we will do next:
• Build on our proven track record of delivering procurement savings and aim to deliver a further £1.3m over the 

next three years

What we have done:
• We have generated significant Value for Money savings through our procurement activity over the last three years:
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 What we will do next:
• Continue to have a zero based approach to budgeting and monitor our performance on a monthly basis
• Undertake a full reforecast at the half year end to ensure our financial plans are on track and to identify any 

opportunities to improve our year end performance
• Manage our transition to FRS102 ensuring new processes and procedures are efficient and effective and that our 

stakeholders are informed of the changes required to our financial reporting

Investment in Development and New Business

Our Approach: to maximise the availability of affordable and social housing through our development and regeneration 
activities.  We have secured grant from our investment partners and generated our own resources through our 
commercial activities.

What we have done:
• Secured £26.7m of grant over the last three years
• Investment in our commercial activities at year end was £14.3m
• Generated £20.7m of Gift Aid from our commercial activities over the last three years
• Invested £99.3m in our development and regeneration activities over the last three years to build 477 new social 

and affordable homes
• Continued to use a standardised approach to appraising our investment decisions through our Group Investment 

Appraisal process

 What we will do next:
• Work to secure £10.7m of grant over the next three years
• Generate £51.1m of Gift Aid over the next three years from our commercial activities
• Deliver a surplus from our charitable activities of at least £9m over the next three years
• Invest in excess of £49.1m in our development and regeneration activities over the next three years to build 476 

new social and affordable homes

Operating and Financial Review

£233k
2012/13

£414k
2013/14

£438k
2014/15

£558k
2015/16

Procurement Savings - Delivered and Planned

Resident and Service User Involvement

Our Approach: to involve residents in the monitoring and improvement of service delivery and provide added 
value through a programme of skills development to support residents, gain employment, improve health and self-
sufficiency.

£412k
2016/17

£390k
2017/18

We have spent our 2014/15 procurement and treasury savings on projects to improve our services
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 What we will do next:
• Work with our Residents’ Scrutiny Panel to complete a programme of service reviews to improve Value for Money
• Continue to implement our Resident Involvement and Communications and Service User Involvement Strategies
• Complete a feasibility study for a Swan Academy to develop a pool of trainees and apprentices

Improving Services

Our Approach: to maintain a robust performance management framework which cascades the delivery of objectives 
through a range of strategies with action plans and key performance measures that are rigorously reviewed and 
reinforced through effective service reviews and individual performance appraisals.

What we have done:
• Completed a service review of our repairs service which has resulted in a detailed action plan to improve 

performance, reduce complaints and ultimately improve satisfaction with a key service
• Introduced a pilot to reduce high cost services following review of service charge affordability 
• Our new approach to tenancy fraud has resulted in 13 properties being returned and let to families in need
• The Striving for Excellence programme saw the implementation of a flexible repair approach and increased 

housing options for those residents wishing to move

 What we will do next:
• Deliver the 2015/16 Striving for Excellence Programme to achieve target customer satisfaction rates
• Embed our Hearts and Minds transformational programme
• Reduce the number of complaints and increase satisfaction

Operating and Financial Review

Self-Assessment Conclusion
As outlined above, VfM is important to Swan and we have a robust approach that ensures:

• We understand the financial returns we get from our new and existing homes 
• We have generated over £1m of Value for Money savings through our Procurement 

and Treasury activities over the last three years and a further £20.7m of Gift Aid from our 
commercial activities 

• We know our cost drivers and regularly compare ourselves to similar organisations which helps 
us to challenge the way we deliver services

• We have made savings of £0.7m during 2014/15 and re-invested them to improve our services
• We have built 477 affordable and social rented new homes over the last three years 
• We have clear plans to make more ongoing savings. We have already identified £1.4m of 

procurement savings that will be delivered over the next three years. These savings will be 
used to improve our services and invest in our development and regeneration projects

Consequently we believe that because of the way we manage the business, know the return from our assets, regularly 
compare our costs/performance with others in order to make improvements and generate ongoing savings Swan fulfils 
the requirements of the VfM standard.

Our detailed Value for Money Self-Assessment and Value for Money Strategy is available on the ‘Publications’ area of 
our website (www.swan.org.uk).

What we have done:
• Delivered a resident training programme that saw 39 residents achieve an accredited qualification including five 

who obtained a Chartered Institute of Housing Level 2 accreditation
• 132 young residents aged 8 -16 took part in our Summer Scheme the project delivered £3.64 of social value for 

every £1 invested
• Our new Resident Scrutiny Panel completed their first review, ‘Accessibility of the Complaints Process’ and made 

a number of recommendations
• Worked with our Resident Consultative Committees to develop and monitor our local offer programme
• Delivered a range of worklessness and community focused activities with the Swan Foundation
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Operating and Financial Review

Housing
Our new Housing Strategy, 
developed during the year, is 
designed to help us deliver ‘Happy 
Customers’.  Our programme 
of service reviews continues to 
effectively challenge how we do 
things and to ensure we implement 
good practice. In the last year, 
we focused on our repairs and 
maintenance service following the 
relocation of the Axis call centre 
from Basildon to Stratford. The 
review resulted in enhancements in 
our aftercare service and how we 
learn from the feedback we receive 
from our customers.  Joint working, 
training and learning between 
Swan and Axis has been key to the 
review’s success.  We will continue 
to implement the findings from the 
review during 2015/16 as well as 
focusing on increasing satisfaction 
with the repairs service.  Our 
partnership with Axis remains strong 
with the delivery of our planned and 
major works programmes on target, 
100% performance on gas servicing 
and an ongoing focus on Value for 
Money. 

Our work to support residents 
through the welfare reform 
continues. Our specialist officers 
have supported our income teams 
in a programme of home visits for 
all residents affected.  One to one 
contact with those affected has 
enabled us to fully understand the 
issues they face and to provide 
tailored support, joint working with 
external agencies and help with 
over 400 claims for discretionary 
housing payments.  We worked with 
the Tower Hamlets ‘Getting on with 
Money’ project and were delighted 
to achieve a positive outcome from 
the Toynbee Hall Financial Inclusion 
health check. We achieved our 
rent arrears target of 2.7% of the 
debit and reduced the number of 
households evicted for non-payment. 

Digital inclusion is of increasing 
importance in everyday life. Our 
digital inclusion work this year 
has seen a new partnership with 
Hyperoptic to bring lower cost super-
fast broadband to our estates, a new 

IT suite on our Exmouth estate, free 
wi-fi in our community facilities and 
digital inclusion training and support 
offered in partnership with Open 
Doors and Silver Training. We are 
investing in further customer online 
access at offices in preparation for 
the full roll out of Universal Credit. 

Last year we adopted a new 
approach for our neighbourhood 
management service giving greater 
emphasis to local decision making. 
We have seen greater visibility of 
team members on our estates, locally 
agreed environmental improvement 
works and block surgeries to enable 
a range of issues to be resolved 
locally. 

This has been supported by our 
new risk based approach to tenancy 
fraud. We have forged links with 
our local authority tenancy fraud 
teams and investigated 86 reports of 
potential fraud, securing the return of 
13 homes for reallocation, supporting 
our objective of maximising the use 
of our stock.

We worked with the Chartered 
Institute of Housing on Anti-Social 
Behaviour and have taken part in 
the Better Together programme. This 
has included a health check of our 
systems and consideration of drivers 
for improved performance.  This 
programme has helped us secure 
improvements in both satisfaction 
with case handling and case 
outcome. 

Listening to our customers and 
learning from what we do is key 
to our success. We reviewed our 
complaint management system which 
has resulted in a new service that 
customers have confidence in, has 
been tested by our Resident Scrutiny 
Panel and increased satisfaction 
with the complaints procedure and 
outcome to top quartile performance. 

Our allocations and lettings service 
is working closely with customers to 
consider a range of housing options 
to meet local needs, and with the 
welfare reform officers, support 
households needing to downsize. 
We achieved 179 mutual exchanges, 

Operational Performance

of which 46 downsized to a smaller 
home.  Working in areas of high 
demand for affordable housing 
resulted in an increasing number of 
customers approaching us for help. 
We are proud to have maintained 
satisfaction with our lettings service 
at 94%. 

We held a special residents’ 
conference in June 2014 to celebrate 
our 20th anniversary and the ongoing 
support our residents give us.  We 
have focused on improving the 
youth activities we offer by securing 
external funding to help support our 
work. Our young people’s summer 
scheme was the largest ever with 
132 young people taking part in a 
range of activities. The programme 
generated £3.64 social return for 
every £1 invested. This year saw 
three Swan resident winners at 
the Star in the Community Awards 
including Young Resident of the Year. 

Our resident training programme 
continued to support both the health 
and wellbeing and employment 
agendas with a range of new and 
existing courses. Five residents 
completed the CIH Level 2 certificate. 

We have continued to expand the 
provision of health MOT checks in 
Essex, a key factor in the successful 
nomination of a member of our team 
for the TPAS Resident Involvement 
Officer of the Year award. 

Our resident involvement framework 
and our comprehensive programme 
of community development events 
has seen a diverse range of residents 
involved in a broad range of activities 
at both local and strategic level.  
A focus on stronger partnership 
working has achieved better Value 
for Money and helps us to deliver 
our objective of being a strong ‘local 
partner’ whilst improving what we can 
offer to our communities.
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At Swan we are proud to work 
with young people across our 
communities to help them achieve 
their dreams. Take 16 year old 
Stephen from our Bow Cross Estate 
who we have been supporting for 
over four years.  

Stephen is passionate about dance 
and despite peer pressure, has 
pursued his dreams. He knows that 
dancers can be as fit as footballers or 
other sports people and isn’t afraid to 
encourage other young people to get 
involved.  

Stephen wanted to bring dance to 
Bow Cross. Together with the local 
Residents’ Board, we worked with 
Stephen to bring weekly classes to 
Bow. Stephen has become a role 
model for the young people on the 
estate and, working with his tutor, 
has led them to deliver inspirational 
performances at estate events and 
at Swan’s Annual Residents’ Days.  
The young people have obtained 
accredited qualifications too.  

For Stephen though, being an 
ambassador in his community was 
just a springboard. He is now working 

to make dance available to other 
young people in Tower Hamlets.  

His ambition and commitment 
was recognised this year when he 
won the coveted Young People’s 
Award in the bi-annual STAR in 
the Community Awards. These 
independently judged awards 
recognise the unsung local heroes. 
Heroes like Stephen.   

He was also a finalist in the TPAS 
Young Person of the Year Award 
category in the Southern Final. 

Case Study



Swan I Annual Report 2015 18

Forest Gate PFI
The year has seen ongoing 
improvements to the local area 
in Forest Gate in the London 
Borough of Newham through our 
environmental improvements 
programme and continuing strong 
housing management performance. 
Our work with the local community 
and the Forest Gate Residents’ Panel 
has seen a local action day, ongoing 
scrutiny of our work and a range 
of community based activities. Our 
performance against key indicators is 
good with 82% satisfied with overall 
landlord services and rent arrears 
4.9% better than our contractual 
target. Financial performance 
remains in line with expectations. 

Operating and Financial Review

Care and Support
Our care and support services have 
delivered positive results during 
the year. Swan House Foyer and 
Dove Cott House remain accredited 
with the Foyer Federation and have 
received excellent feedback from 
our Local Authority partners. We 
have delivered a health project in 
partnership with the Foyer Federation 
and the National Lottery to assist 
our young people to make positive 
choices around their whole life 
wellbeing. 

Our extra care provision at the 
Cannons in Colchester continues 
to exceed its delivery targets for 
care and support hours, making a 
positive contribution to our Supported 
Housing activities.

Vivo, our dedicated care and 
support business, continues to grow 
and is making a positive financial 
contribution to the Group. Vivo has 
also been awarded new contracts 
to deliver housing related support 
functions for those with learning 
disabilities living within Almshouse 
services.

Swan’s Care and Repair Service, in 
partnership with Vivo, has delivered 
a successful Rapid Response 
Service commissioned by the North 
East Essex Clinical Commissioning 
Group. Almost one thousand 
vulnerable older people in the north 

of the county have been supported 
to either leave a hospital stay sooner 
than if the service was not in place, 
or to avoid a hospital visit altogether, 
enabling them to remain in their 
homes and be more happy and 
independent.

Swan Foundation
Swan Foundation is a charity set 
up to help communities in East 
London and Essex which it supports 
through education, employment and 
community cohesion, environment, 
health and sport.  

The Foundation builds partnerships 
with businesses to invest in 
communities and turn aspirations into 
reality. During the year they worked 
with key partners including The 
Prince’s Trust, Women’s Aid, NASSA 
and Signpost. 

The Foundation was chosen as 
the partner charity of the year by 
Tower Hamlets College, Olive 
Communications and Hermes 
Investments Limited. 

Through building partnerships with 
businesses and working with funding 
organisations, the Foundation 
was able to generate and provide 
direct funds totalling £59,287 to six 
community projects.

As part of our Group’s celebrations 
of the 20th Anniversary of Swan, our 
staff raised over £29,000 in support 
of the Foundation.

Regeneration and 
Development Activity
We continue to invest in our 
regeneration and development 
activities in East London and Essex. 
In the past year we had over 500 
homes on site and we have a 
pipeline of a further 3,000 units 
identified, including a significant 
number in Local Authority Housing 
Zones which will be a priority for 
development.

Our Craylands Phase 1 (C-F) 
scheme in Basildon delivered its 
first 28 handovers during the year. A 
further 125 affordable homes will be 
completed early in the next financial 

year. Designs for the subsequent 
phases of this regeneration scheme 
are currently being worked on.

Phase 1a of our Blackwall Reach 
development in Tower Hamlets is 
complete with 98 homes due to 
handover early next financial year 
alongside new community facilities. 
Swan’s new offices at the project will 
be ready for occupation in the late 
autumn of 2015. The next phase of 
this scheme, phase 1b, is on target to 
start in 2015.

The Bow Cross development, also 
in Tower Hamlets, achieved practical 
completion in 2015. Of the 93 homes 
in the final block, 33 were sold by 
the end of the financial year. All 
the remaining homes are under 
offer. The project will finish in June 
2015 concluding almost 10 years of 
regeneration in this area which has 
involved the complete refurbishment 
of 295 homes and the construction of 
385 new homes. The project won the 
prestigious Mayor of London award 
for Planning Excellence in February 
2015 and was cited by a panel 
of judges, including Mayor Boris 
Johnson, as having ‘transformed the 
neighbourhood.’

Repton Court and Claire House 
phase 1 in Redbridge is close to 
completion and 53 homes will be 
ready for occupation early next 
financial year. Phase 2 is due to 
start in the autumn and will deliver 
a further 96 homes, 46 of which 
are funded by the Greater London 
Authority under their Mayor’s 
Housing Covenant, 2015-18 
programme.

Finally, Swan New Homes, now 
trading as NU Living, generated 
a £5.5m profit before Gift Aid and 
tax which the Group will ultimately 
reinvest in social and affordable 
housing.
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Case Study
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In May 2014, Swan Board Chair 
Valerie Owen OBE set Swan staff 
the challenge to raise £20,000 for the 
Swan Foundation. 

The money raised would be used to 
support communities in some of the 

most disadvantaged areas of East 
London and Essex. 

After just nine months, our staff, 
partners and residents had raised 
£20,888, with a final total of £29,475 
for the year.

The money was raised through a 
number of special events, such 
as inter-office competitions, a golf 
and dinner day, a bowling evening, 
raffles, bungee jumps and a rounders 
competition (see image above). 

Case Study
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Operating and Financial Review

Property Management
Hera, our property management 
company, has grown the number 
of units managed by 20% in the 
last year and increased turnover by 
11%. Following a successful bid for 
management of a growing portfolio of 
rented properties, plans for the year 
ahead include growth in the number 
of units managed both through 
contracts won and the acquisition of 
management portfolios. 

Our Social Impact
Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) is a core element of delivering 
our mission and we are proud of 
our achievements this year.  We 
are committed to improving the 
quality of life of our residents, 
providing excellent housing 
services that meet the changing 
needs of the communities of East 

London and Essex, and delivering 
neighbourhoods that are healthy, 
vibrant and sustainable.

In the last 12 months, 36 individuals 
have embarked on an apprenticeship 
programme through our Group, 26 
young people have gained work 
experience, and 58 individuals have 
completed a training course.

We continue to be recognised for 
our environmental improvements 
and attained a SHIFT (Sustainable 
Homes Index for Tomorrow) Gold 
Award, only one of six to be awarded.  

A successful water efficiency pilot in 
conjunction with Essex and Suffolk 
Water and Axis saw some of our 
residents save on average 41.94 
litres of water per property, per day, 

which equates to an annual monetary 
saving of £47.10 per property.  

Following the success, plans are now 
being put in place to install the water 
saving products into void properties.  
The project was selected as a winner 
of a Green Apple Award.

Working in partnership with Essex 
Police and other key stakeholders, 
our main office, Pilgrim House, has 
been registered as a Hate Incident 
Reporting Centre with three staff 
trained as Hate Crime Ambassadors.
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Our People
We continue to recognise the 
importance of our people in the 
successful delivery of our strategic 
objectives. During the year our 
employee survey was, for the first 
time, aligned to the Times’ ‘Best 
Companies to Work For’ model. 
This resulted in us being accredited 
as ‘One to Watch’.  Our aim is to 
become a Times ‘Top 100 Best 
Company to Work For’ over the 
coming years.

We have extended our learning and 
development offer with supported 
study, NVQs and a range of customer 
service, IT and technical training. We 
started a comprehensive Leadership 
Development programme for all our 
managers to provide them with core 
skills to help deliver our goals.

Operating and Financial Review

Health and Safety
Our health and safety performance 
continues to be reviewed on a 
monthly basis at a committee 
attended by representatives from 
across the business, at the Executive 

Equality and Diversity
Through our Equality Scheme we 
are committed to providing equal 
opportunities to staff and proactively 
encourage an inclusive workplace. 
Staff diversity is a key indicator. At 31 
March 2015 our people profile was: 
20% black and minority ethnic, 62% 
women and almost 2% declared a 
recognised disability.

Our staff undertook mandatory 
training on equality & diversity, anti-
bribery, data protection, health & 
safety and environmental awareness 
this year.

Our absence rates for the year 
remain below UK and sector levels. 
This has been achieved through the 
close monitoring of absence as well 
as the use of wellbeing campaigns. 
Once again, we have around one 
third of employees who have 100% 
attendance records.

level in a Health and Safety 
Committee chaired by the Chief 
Executive and on a quarterly basis 
by the Board. We carry out regular 
inspections, audits and training 
to ensure that we comply with the 
relevant legislation whilst always 
striving for best practice.

image

Employee Event 2015; staff 
worked together to build a 

‘rollercoaster’
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Key Risk Action Being Taken
• Significant falls in property prices or a material 

slowdown in the housing market would have a 
detrimental effect on our business plan due to a 
reduction in the profits from the sale of new homes

• Robust appraisal process and prudent assumptions 
with regards to sales values

• Experienced sales and marketing team
• Regular options appraisals on scheme tenure mix

• Failure to comply with financial and other covenants in 
loan documentation as a result of inaccurate cash flow 
forecasting or other issues would have an adverse 
effect on our business plan

• Well established cash flow forecasting and business 
planning process

• Clear understanding of loan documentation and 
associated covenants

• Effective scenario planning including multi-variance 
analysis

• Government policy with regards to availability of 
capital grant may restrict development activities in the 
future

• Experience of developing without grant
• Ability to continue development with cross subsidy 

from the sale of private housing
• Robust appraisal process focused on the cash impact 

of development activities

• Government policy with regards to the rents we can 
charge or long periods of low inflation may have an 
adverse effect on our business plan

• We have modelled the impact of changes in rent 
levels in our business plan (including the changes 
announced in the July 2015 budget) and considered 
the impact when combined with other risks. We have 
plans in place which we believe will substantially 
mitigate the impact of these changes on our business 
plan

• Significant increases in interest rates in the medium/
long term may have an adverse effect on our business 
plan

• Business planning includes sensitivity analysis to 
model the impact of changes in key variables such 
as interest rates in isolation and when combined with 
other risks

• The changes to the benefits system as a result of 
welfare reform may have an adverse effect on rent 
arrears

• Detailed action plan in place to address the impact of 
Welfare Reform

• Welfare benefits advisors in post to provide support 
and advice to residents

• Clear understanding of the potential financial impact of 
Welfare Reform 

• The failure of a strategic partner could lead to a 
deterioration in service levels to residents or a delay in 
the delivery of development projects 

• Ongoing monitoring and review of the performance of 
strategic partners

• The failure to deliver one of our material development 
schemes on time and to budget could have an adverse 
effect on our business plan

• Robust, externally validated processes and 
procedures for our development activities

• Business planning includes sensitivities around 
increased costs and delays in delivery of material 
schemes

Risk Management 
Swan has a well-developed 
risk management system and 
an embedded culture of risk 
management.  Our Risk Management 
Strategy clearly defines our risk 
appetite and the role of the Board, 
Audit and Risk Committee, Managers 
and Staff.    

Through risk management we:

• embed risk assessment and 
risk management into the 
culture of the organisation

• carry out risk assessments 
on all departments and 
significant projects

• monitor the overall impact of 
risks to ensure that the overall 
level of risk remains within 
acceptable limits

• minimise losses, injury and 
damage and reduce the cost 
of risk

• ensure appropriate mitigating 
actions are taken to address 
identified risks

• review key risks at Board and 
Audit and Risk Committee

• review and report on 
the effectiveness of risk 
management and our internal 
controls annually 

The key risks to the successful 
achievement of our mission are set 
out below:

Effective management of these risks is given a high priority within Swan and we strive to ensure that appropriate risk 
mitigations and controls are in place.
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Capital structure and treasury 
management

In March 2015 the Group issued a 
£250m bond and restructured its 
syndicated loan facility as detailed in 
the Business and Financial Review.

Facilities and liquidity

Interest rate risk management
The Group borrows from three 
(2014: four) banks at floating rates 
of interest. Interest rate swaps are 
used to convert some of the floating 
into fixed and RPI indexed to limit the 
Group’s exposure to interest rates.  
The bond has a fixed rate of interest, 
and no swaps have been entered 

Maturity

2015
£m

2014
£m

Within one year 2 2

Between one and two 
years

2 2

Between two and five 
years

8 14

After five years 482 433

494 451

The Group does not have any non-Sterling or exchange rate exposures.

All debt Excluding £40m RCF

Variable Fixed Callable < 1 year RPI Indexed

30% 70%

55%

5% 10%

Source Facility 
31 March 2015

£m

Drawn
31 March 2015

£m

Facility
31 March 2014

£m

Drawn 
31 March 2014

£m
RBS loan 138 113 - -

Lloyds loan 119 114 - -

Santander loan 83 83 - -

Syndicated loan - - 480 415

Bank loan total 340 310 480 415

Bond 250 150 - -

Bank and bond total 590 460 480 415

RBS PFI 40 34 40 36

Total debt 630 494 520 451

into to convert this fixed rate into a 
different interest rate basis. 

At year end 70% (2014: 61%) of debt 
was fixed and 30% (2014: 39%) was 
floating. Scenario analysis has been 
run to assess the sensitivity of the 
floating debt to movements in interest 
rates. Excluding the £40m of drawn 

As at 31 March 2015 the Group had 
£30m (2014: £65m) of committed 
undrawn bank facilities available for 
borrowing and £100m of retained 
bonds.  In line with our prudent 

policies on liquidity management, 
these undrawn facilities meet all of 
the Group’s contractually committed 
developments in the coming years.

RCF from the above figures the mix 
moves to 76% of the debt fixed and 
24% floating.  The charts below show 
the split of outstanding debt between 
variable and fixed rates and of the 
fixed rates, a further breakdown by 
fix type including and excluding the 
RCF.

Variable Fixed Callable < 1 year RPI Indexed

24% 76%

60%

6% 10%
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Counterparty risk management

The Group maintains a formal 
counterparty policy in respect of 
those institutions where surplus 
funds may be deposited.  Deposits 
are made either in call accounts, 
or where the notice period is no 
more than two months.  In addition, 
the credit ratings of institutions are 
regularly reviewed and form part of 
any investment decision. 

Credit Risk

The Group’s principal credit risk 
relates to tenant arrears. This risk 

Operating and Financial Review

Compliance with loan covenants

The three bank loans have common 
covenants, being interest cover 
and net debt per unit.  These are 
monitored monthly and reported to 
the three bank lenders on a quarterly 
basis. The Bond does not have an 
interest cover covenant. For the year 
ended 31 March 2015 the interest 
cover and net debt per unit were in 
compliance with our covenants. All 
four sources of finance, three bank 
loans and the Bond, are secured on 
social housing assets.  

Treasury Strategy

We will continue to look to deliver 
Value for Money savings through 
prudent cash management 
processes and minimising interest 
costs where possible and in line with 
our Treasury policy. Whilst we have 
no immediate plans to issue our 
£100m retained bonds, we have a 
strategy which sets out the conditions 
that we would see as favourable.

Statement of Compliance

In preparing this Operating and 
Financial Review and Board 
Report, the Board has followed the 
principles set out in the Statement 
of Recommended Practice (SORP 
2010): Accounting for registered 
social housing providers (2012).

Bellevue Bow, Bow London

is managed by providing support to 
tenants with applications for benefits 
whilst closely monitoring tenant 
arrears.
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Report of the Board

The Board and Committee structure, 
which underwent significant change 
during the prior year, has settled 
down and is operating well with the 
new memberships. That structure 
was in line with the recommendations 
of a specialist advisor engaged by 
the Board and we reported last year 
that it was anticipated that the new 
structure would enable Swan to 
achieve an improved rating from the 
Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA) grade 3 for governance. 
The Board is pleased to report 
Swan received the top rating of 1 in 
February 2015, following an earlier 
re-assessment to 2 in October 2014. 
Swan’s viability rating remains at 1. 

The Board comprises nine members, 
two of which are Swan Executive 
Directors and the balance non-
executive. The subsidiaries of the 
parent company have a broadly 
matching board structure to the 
parent, and the four Committees of 
the Board work Group-wide.

The Board has continued to 
operate within the National Housing 
Federation’s 2010 Governance Code: 
Excellence in Governance and the 
National Housing Federation’s Code 
of Conduct.  In accordance with 
the underlying ‘comply or explain’ 
principle of such codes, this section 
of the report seeks to provide detail 
about:

• The Board and its Role
• Board Effectiveness
• Relations with Stakeholders
• How the Board Operates

The Board is committed to adherence 
to such codes and to high standards 
of conduct and again reviewed its 
compliance during the year.  The 
Group does not currently publish a 
list of interests of its Board members, 
but does gather such information 
annually and requires disclosure 
of interests at all Board/Committee 
meetings. 

The Board has a closed shareholder 
structure and hence does not need 
to regularly review a policy for 
admission of shareholders. The 
Board considers that its governance 

structure and operating practices 
ensure that it is accessible to 
residents and other customers who 
might otherwise form the core of 
its shareholder base.  In all other 
instances, the Board considers it 
complies with these codes. 

The Board is also aware that 
the National Housing Federation 
published an update to its 2010 
Governance Code in February 2015 
and commenced consideration 
of the adoption of this new code 
at its meeting in March. Further 
work is to be undertaken to identify 
any changes required to Swan’s 
governance structure to enable 
adoption in the new financial year.

The Board have considered in 
detail the new HCA Regulatory 
Framework which took effect from 1 
April 2015 and are confident of the 
organisation’s ability to meet the 
revised Economic and Consumer 
Standards contained therein. 

The Board and its Role

Swan Housing Association Limited 
is a Housing Association originally 
constituted under the Industrial and 
Provident Societies Act 1965. From 
1 August 2014, the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 
came into force which consolidates 
the 1965 act with certain other acts 
and as a consequence of which 
Swan is now known as a Registered 
Society as opposed to an Industrial 
and Provident Society. Other than 
this change of title, no changes of 
consequence are expected to impact 
Swan from this legislative change.  

The Rules of the Association, which 
were refreshed in July 2013 as part 
of the revision of the governance 
structure, remain its principal 
document of constitution and 
regulate various matters including the 
Board, its powers and its role. The 
Board has adopted Standing Orders, 
Scheme of Delegations and Financial 
Regulations and has in place 
Committee Terms of Reference and 
an intra-Group agreement to further 
formalise and regulate matters 
between the parent, and the Group’s 
Committees and subsidiaries. 

Corporate Governance
The Board’s role is to provide 
strategic direction and to govern, 
control and scrutinise the 
Association’s and the Group’s 
operations. At the year end, the 
Board comprised seven shareholder 
members and two Executive Director 
members. Changes in Board 
membership during the year are 
detailed on page 4 of these Financial 
Statements. 

The implementation of the amended 
governance structure provided the 
opportunity to ensure the Board 
and its Committees comprised 
members from a diverse range of 
backgrounds and with the range of 
skills, knowledge and experiences 
appropriate for their needs.  
Membership of the Board is and will 
be reviewed regularly by the Board 
to ensure the mix of skills, knowledge 
and experience remains appropriate. 
Profiles of the non-executive Board 
members can be viewed on the 
Association’s website (www.swan.
org.uk).  

Board membership is usually for 
a three year term with a maximum 
of nine years, except for co-optees 
who are appointed annually. Board 
members have formal service 
agreements, are expected to devote 
the necessary time to prepare for 
and attend all Board meetings and 
the meetings of those Committees 
of which they are members, together 
with appropriate training, appraisal 
and other review meetings. Members 
are paid as detailed in the Board 
Remuneration section on page 29. 

The Group maintains directors’ and 
officers’ liability insurance for its 
Board members and officers, which is 
renewed annually. The Board is given 
access to independent professional 
advice at the Group’s expense when 
the Board so requires.
 

Board Effectiveness

The Board receives regular updates 
on the performance of the Group’s 
businesses, the legal and the 
regulatory environments in which 
they operate and developments 
in their sectors through briefings 
included in Board papers or other 
presentations.
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Relations with Stakeholders

The principal stakeholders of the 
Group are its tenants, service 
users, employees, local authorities, 
the Greater London Authority, the 
HCA and funders. Tenants are now 
represented through the Board’s 
new Operations Committee, the 

With the assistance of Campbell 
Tickell the Board has recently 
developed and adopted a new 
appraisal process for the evaluation 
of the performance of the Chair, 
Board members and the Board as 
a whole.  The outcomes from this 
process have been captured on an 
‘Excellence in Governance’ action 
plan.  Progress will be closely 
monitored by the Board. The Board 
from time to time gathers together 
for training and development activity 
and to consider wider issues such 
as succession planning. Individual 
members may undertake training or 
development activity as identified by 
them or in their annual evaluations.

The Board tours locations of the 
Group, enabling it to meet tenants 
and other service users, at least 
annually, and any new Board 
members have already undertaken 
this tour as part of their induction 
process. 

responsibilities of which are detailed 
below in the section How the 
Board Operates. The operations 
of the Association are regulated 
by the Social Housing Regulator, 
the HCA, but also in part by the 
Care Quality Commission, and 
the Board pays particular interest 
to regulatory reporting. As noted 
above, occasionally the Board has 
the opportunity to meet tenants and 
service users and obtains feedback 
from various tenant facing bodies 
including the resident scrutiny panel, 
which is not a Committee of the 
Board. 

Relations with employees are 
managed through the Executive 
Directors and through an Employee 
Representative Committee. Relations 
with funders are also primarily 
managed through the Executive 
Directors. 
 

How the Board Operates
   

The Board’s Standing Orders, 
Scheme of Delegations, Code of 
Conduct and Financial Regulations 
codify various matters for the better 
operation of the Group’s business 
and within which it expressly 
reserves specified significant matters 
for its sole decision. The Board 
meets regularly and has established 

a number of Committees to which 
the Board has delegated certain 
responsibilities under formal Terms 
of Reference.  The Board also meets 
with the Executive Directors regularly 
during the year.

The Board has met bi-monthly during 
the year. The Committees, other than 
the Remuneration and Appointments 
Committee, have also met five or 
six times each.  The meetings held 
during the year and the attendance 
of individual members at each is 
detailed on page 27. Each entry is 
displayed as a fraction which has the 
number of meetings actually attended 
as the numerator and the number of 
meetings held and which could have 
been attended as the denominator.

Board and Committee members have 
online access to all papers for the 
appropriate meetings and hence can 
access them even if they have made 
notification that they are unable to 
attend. Membership of Committees 
will continue to be reviewed and 
determined annually. Committee 
appointments involve non-Board 
members. 
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Swan HA Main 
Board

Operations 
Committee

Development 
& New Business 

Committee

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Remuneration  & 
Appointments

Committee
Valerie Owen OBE 
(Chair)

6/6 - 3/6 - 2/2

George Kieffer (to 
31/7/2014)

2/2 2/2 - - 1/1

Derek Morrison 4/6 3/3 - 3/3 1/1

Sheila Lewis 6/6 - 6/6 - 2/2

Steve Walker (to 
14/9/14)

2/2 2/2 - - -

Peter Baynham 4/6 - - 4/5 1/1

Marie Li Mow Ching 6/6 3/3 - 3/3 1/1

John Synnuck 5/6 - - - -

Jamie Smith 6/6 - - - -

Alan Palmer (from 
1/10/14)

3/3 - - 2/2 -

Sukhvinder Kaur-
Stubbs (from 1/2/15)

1/1 - - - -

Committee 
members who are 
not Board members:
Rashid Khilji - - - 5/5 -

Glyn Kyle - 5/5 - - -

Peter Brooks - 5/5 - - -

Darren Coan - 4/5 - - -

Michelle Richards - 5/5 - - -

Iphie Mottoh - 3/5 - - -

Gideon Amos - - 6/6 - -

David Leah - - 5/6 - -

Ralph Luck - - 5/6 - -

Alexandra Morshed - 5/5 - - -

Doug McCann - - - 2/2 -
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A brief overview of the constitution 
of the Committees is given below. 
Other panels and working groups are 
formed as considered appropriate 
to deal with particular issues as they 
arise.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee 
consists of four members, two of 
which are Board members and 
two are independent. It meets at 
least four times per year, although 
currently is meeting more frequently.  
It receives reports from the external 
and internal auditors and reviews 
the processes for audit and risk 
management. It is chaired by a 
member of the Board who is not the 
Chair of the Board of Swan Housing 
Association Limited.

Remuneration and Appointments 
Committee

This Committee now comprises 
four members, the Board Chair 
and the chairs of the three other 
Committees.  It continues to meet 
at least annually and considers 

Board structure and appointments, 
the working arrangements and 
remuneration of the Board, Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors. 
The Board Chair currently chairs this 
Committee, but will stand down as 
chair of this Committee as part of the 
arrangements leading to the adoption 
of the NHF’s 2015 Governance 
Code.

Operations Committee

The Operations Committee focuses 
on all aspects of the effective and 
efficient operational delivery of the 
Group’s services, ensuring feedback 
from tenants and other service users 
and promoting high standards. 
The Committee comprises eight 
members, two from the main Board, 
four tenants and two independents. 
It meets at least four times per year, 
although currently is meeting more 
frequently.

Development and New Business 
Committee 

This Committee oversees the 
Group’s development of new homes 

and explores and oversees new 
business streams or initiatives, 
outside the core Association housing 
rental and care service businesses, 
and other special projects. The 
Committee comprises five members, 
two from the main Board and three 
independents. It meets at least four 
times per year, although currently is 
meeting more frequently.

Declarations of Interest

All Board and Committee members 
are required to declare any interests 
annually and otherwise at meetings 
where potential issues may arise.  
Individuals with a relevant interest 
are required to leave the meeting, 
unless requested otherwise by the 
Board/Committee membership, and 
in any event do not vote on the issue 
concerned.

Report of the Board
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Board Remuneration

The Board has determined, following 
advice and benchmarking, that it 
is appropriate, and continues to be 
appropriate, that Board members 
should be paid for their time and 
dedication. Committee members 
who are not Board members also 

receive fees for their services. The 
annual fees paid to Board members 
in position during the year are set out 
below. In addition, Board members 
are reimbursed for any expenses 
incurred in carrying out their duties 
and in attending Board or Committee 

Board member £

Valerie Owen 20,000

George Kieffer (to 31/7/14) 3,333

Derek Morrison 10,000

Sheila Lewis 10,000

Steve Walker (to 14/9/14) 5,000

Peter Baynham 10,000

Marie Li Mow Ching 10,000

Alan Palmer (from 1/10/14) 5,000

Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs (from 1/2/15) 1,667

Committee members who are not Board members:

Rashid Khilji 5,000

Glyn Kyle 5,000

Peter Brooks 5,000

Darren Coan 5,000

Michelle Richards 5,000

Iphie Mottoh 5,000

Gideon Amos 5,000

David Leah 5,000

Ralph Luck 5,000

Doug McCann 2,500

Total 122,500

Executive Directors
 

The Executive Directors are listed on 
Page 4 and hold no interest in the 
share capital of any member of the 
Group. They act as Executives within 
the authority delegated by the Board. 

Particulars of the Group’s pension 
scheme (the Social Housing Pension 
Scheme), into which the Group 
pays contributions on behalf of 
the Executive Directors and other 
employees, are set out in Note 24 to 
the Financial Statements.

Going Concern

Following a review of the Group 
business plan, based on normal 
business planning and control 
procedures, the members of 
the Board have a reasonable 
expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue 
its operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. The Group has 
a total committed bank borrowing 
facility of £380m of which £30m 

The total amount paid above represents 0.1% (2014: 0.1%) of Group annual turnover.

meetings. The remuneration of 
those Board members who are also 
Executive Directors is included in 
note 4 to the financial statements.

is undrawn and a £250m bond of 
which £100m is retained. Cash at 
the year end was £20m. A revised 
long term business plan has been 
approved by the Board.  This reflects 
current projections in relation to 
development, rent restructuring and 
investment in existing stock.
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Board’s statement on the annual 
review of the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control systems

The Board acknowledges its overall 
responsibility, applicable to all 
organisations within the Group, for 
establishing and maintaining the 
whole system of internal control and 
for reviewing its effectiveness. 

The system of internal control is 
designed to manage, rather than 
eliminate, the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives, and 
to provide reasonable assurance 
against material misstatement or 
loss.  

The process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the 
significant risks faced by the Group 
is ongoing, has been in place 
throughout the period commencing 
1 April 2014 up to the date of 
approval of the report and financial 
statements.

Key elements of the control 
framework include:

• Board approved terms of 
reference and delegated 
authorities for Board 
committees

• clearly defined management 
responsibilities for the 
identification, evaluation and 
control of significant risks

• robust strategic and business 
planning processes, with 
detailed financial budgets 
and forecasts

• formal recruitment, retention, 
training and development 
policies for all staff

• established authorisation 
and appraisal procedures for 
significant new initiatives and 
commitments

• a sophisticated approach to 
treasury management which 
is subject to external review 
each year

• regular reporting to the 
appropriate committee on 
key business objectives, 
targets and outcomes

• Board approved whistle-
blowing, anti-bribery, anti-
theft and corruption policies

• Board approved fraud 
policies, covering prevention, 

detection and reporting, 
together with recoverability of 
assets

• regular monitoring of loan 
covenants and requirements 
for new loan facilities

The Group currently has various 
systems in place to record its assets 
and liabilities. We have brought the 
information from these systems 
together into a single assets and 
liabilities register.  We expect to 
undertake further work in the coming 
year to fully integrate the register into 
our processes and systems so that 
it is kept up to date easily, becomes 
part of the way we work and avoids 
unnecessary duplication of record 
keeping.

Audit Committee  

The Board has a designated Group 
Audit & Risk Committee; the terms 
of reference for which reflect the 
Housing Corporation’s good practice 
guide ‘Improving the effectiveness 
of Audit Committees’. The meetings 
are attended by the Deputy Chief 
Executive, Senior Finance Staff and 
other Directors as required.

This Committee is responsible 
for reviewing the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Group’s systems 
of internal controls and reporting its 
conclusions to the Board, receiving 
reports from both the internal and 
external auditors.  

Internal Audit Function

The Group purchases an internal 
audit service. This work has been 
carried out in accordance with 
the Institute of Internal Auditors’ 
Standards and Guidance.

The internal auditor reports annually 
to the Group Audit & Risk Committee 
on the system of internal controls, 
with an opinion as to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of key internal 
control systems.  The internal 
auditor attends the Group Audit and 
Risk Committee to present reports 
and to report on management 
progress in implementing agreed 
recommendations.  

The internal audit is planned, based 
on the results of an Audit Needs 

Assessment.  A rolling programme is 
undertaken to cover the whole of the 
Group’s system of control.

External Audit

The work of the external auditors 
has been conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK and Ireland) and their 
audit opinion is contained within the 
financial statements. 

The terms of engagement of the 
external auditors provides that 
weaknesses in the structure of 
accounting systems and internal 
controls; inappropriate accounting 
policies and practices including 
non compliance with legislation, 
accounting standards and other 
regulations would be highlighted if 
identified as part of the normal audit 
work.

Any significant weaknesses in 
internal controls identified are 
reported to the Group Audit and Risk 
Committee and an action plan to 
address the weakness is agreed. No 
serious control weaknesses have 
been identified this year.

Auditors

The auditors, Grant Thornton 
UK LLP, will be deemed to be 
reappointed in accordance with 
section 93 of the Co-Operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 
2014.

Quality Management Systems/
Performance Indicators

During the year the Group has 
continued to comply with the criterion 
for ISO 9001:2000 and 14001; 
adherence to this quality framework 
ensures that procedures used within 
the Group are developed and applied 
consistently.

The Group has successfully 
complied with the Customer Service 
Excellence standard, demonstrating 
its continued commitment to 
Customer Care.  We were accredited 
with five compliance plus levels, 
evidence of best practice within all 
organisations, in the areas of:

• reaching hard to reach and 
disadvantaged Groups

• consultation being integral to 
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improvement 
• insight on customers and 

service improvement 
including having an 
appropriate scrutiny 
framework 

• information is provided 
through a number of channels 
including Facebook 

• Interaction with wider 
communities

The Group continues to maintain its 
Investors in People accreditation: a 
business improvement tool designed 
to advance an organisation’s 
performance through its people and 
continuous improvement. 

Statement of Responsibilities of the 
Board

The Board is responsible for 
preparing the report and financial 
statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

Co-Operative and Community Benefit 
Societies legislation requires the 
Board to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year.

Under that law the Board have 
elected to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards and applicable 
laws). Under the Co-Operative 
and Community Benefit Societies 
legislation the Board must not 
approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs and surplus or deficit of 
the Association and Group for that 
period. In preparing these financial 
statements, the Board are required 

to: 

• select suitable accounting 
policies and then apply them 
consistently

• make judgments and 
accounting estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent

• state whether applicable UK 
Accounting Standards and the 
Statement of Recommended 
Practice (SORP) Accounting 
by Registered Housing 
Providers Update 2010, have 
been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial 
statements

• prepare the financial 
statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that 
the association will continue in 
business

The Board is responsible for keeping 
proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position 
of the Group and Association and 
enable it to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Co-
operative and Community Benefits 
Act 2014. It is also responsible 
for safeguarding the assets of 
the Group and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Board members are responsible 
for the maintenance and integrity 
of the corporate and financial 
information included on the Group’s 
websites. 

Legislation in the United Kingdom 

Approved by the Board on 
23 July 2015           

John Synnuck
Chief Executive

Report of the Board

governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements 
may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions.

In so far as each of the Board 
members is aware:

• there is no relevant audit 
information of which the 
Association’s auditors are 
unaware

• the Board members have 
taken all steps that they 
ought to have taken to make 
themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and 
to establish that the auditors 
are aware of that information
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Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Swan 
Housing Association Limited
We have audited the financial 
statements of Swan Housing 
Association Limited for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 which 
comprise the consolidated and 
Association income and expenditure 
accounts, the consolidated and 
Association statements of total 
recognised surpluses and deficits, 
the consolidated and Association 
note of historical cost surpluses 
and deficits, the consolidated 
and Association reconciliations of 
movement in funds, the consolidated 
and Association balance sheets, the 
consolidated cash flow statement 
and the related notes. 

The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law 
and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice).

This report is made solely to the 
housing association’s members, as a 
body, in accordance with regulations 
made under Sections 87 and 98 (7) 
of the Co-operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014. 

Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the housing 
association’s members those matters 
we are required to state to them in 
an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose. 

To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than 
the housing association and the 
housing association’s members as 
a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

Respective responsibilities of the 
board and auditors

As explained more fully in the 
Statement of Responsibilities 
of the Board (set out on page 

31), the Board is responsible for 
the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view. 
Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial 
statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland). Those standards require us 
to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 

In addition, we read all the financial 
and non-financial information in the 
Operating and Financial Review 
and Board report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements. 

If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements 
or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements

A description of the scope of an audit 
of financial statements is provided on 
the APB’s website at www.frc.org.
uk/auditscopeukprivate/

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial 
statements:

• give a true and fair view of 
the Association’s affairs and 
Group affairs as at 31 March 
2015 and of the Group’s and 
Associations income and 
expenditure for the year then 
ended; and

• have been properly prepared 
in accordance with Co-
operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014, the 
Housing and Regeneration 
Act 2008 and the Accounting 
Direction for Private 
Registered Providers of Social 
Housing 2012

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Cambridge, England
19th August 2015

Matters on which we are required 
to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect 
of the following matters where the 
Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion:

• a satisfactory system of 
control over transactions has 
not been maintained; or

• the Association has not kept 
proper accounting records; or

• the financial statements are 
not in agreement with the 
books of account; or

• we have not received all the 
information and explanations 
we need for our audit.
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Income and Expenditure Accounts

Consolidated income and expenditure account

Note 2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Turnover 2&3 81,976 89,546

Operating costs 2&3 (57,070) (66,477)

Impairment 2&3 - (2,007)

Operating surplus 2&3 24,906   21,062
Surplus on sale of housing assets 6 402 698

Interest receivable 7 95 139

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (15,543) (15,676)

Exceptional loan capital restructuring cost 8a (24,985) -

Interest payable (40,528) (15,676)

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 9 (15,125) 6,223
Tax credit/(charge) on (deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities 10 - 23

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities after taxation (15,125) 6,246

Consolidated statement of total recognised surpluses and 
deficits

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year (15,125) 6,246

Unrealised surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of housing and office 
properties

67,927 (4,037)

Total surplus recognised since last financial statements 52,802 2,209

Consolidated note of historical cost surpluses and deficits
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Reported (deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation (15,125) 6,223

Difference between historical depreciation charge and the actual charge 
for the year calculated on the revalued amount

    1,764 1,777

Realisation of property revaluation gains 104 134

Historical cost (deficit)/surplus for the year before taxation (13,257) 8,134

Historical cost (deficit)/surplus for the year after taxation (13,257) 8,157

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

Valerie Owen OBE
Chair

John Synnuck
Chief Executive

Jamie Smith
Company Secretary

Company Number: 28496R

The turnover and (deficit)/surplus for both the current and prior year relate to continuing activities.
The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 23 July 2015 and signed on its behalf by: 
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Association income and expenditure account

Note 2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Turnover 2&3 72,857   68,526

Operating costs 2&3  (47,865)  (45,192)

Impairment 2&3 - (2,007)

Operating surplus 2&3    24,992 21,327
Surplus on sale of housing assets 6 402 698

Interest receivable 7 950 596

Interest payable and similar charges 8   (15,537) (15,445)

Exceptional loan capital restructuring costs 8a (24,985) -

Interest payable (40,522) (15,445)

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 9 (14,178) 7,176
Tax on (deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities 10 - -

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities after taxation (14,178) 7,176

Association statement of total recognised surpluses and 
deficits

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

(Deficit)/surplus for the financial year (14,178)   7,176

Unrealised surplus/ (deficit) on revaluation of housing and office 
properties

67,927 (4,037)

Total surplus recognised since last financial statements 53,749 3,139

Association note of historical cost surpluses and deficits
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Reported (deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation (14,178) 7,176

Difference between historical depreciation charge and the actual charge 
for the year calculated on the revalued amount

1,764 1,777

Realised profit on disposal 104 134

Historical cost (deficit)/surplus for the year before taxation (12,310) 9,087
Historical cost (deficit)/surplus for the year after taxation        (12,310) 9,087

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 23 July 2015 and signed on its behalf by: 

Valerie Owen OBE
Chair

John Synnuck
Chief Executive

Jamie Smith
Company Secretary

The turnover and (deficit)/surplus for the current and prior year relate to continuing activities. 

Company Number: 28496R
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Consolidated balance sheet

Note 2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Intangible and tangible fixed assets
Goodwill 11a 844 914

Housing properties at valuation 11b 717,196 624,034

Other tangible fixed assets 11c 4,424 4,427

Total intangible and tangible assets 722,464 629,375
Current assets
Properties held for sale and work in progress 12 52,419 47,565

Debtors due within one year 13a 18,581 13,623

Debtors due after one year 13b 32,976 35,702

Cash at bank and in hand 20,112 20,370

124,088 117,260
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (32,240) (29,226)

Net current assets 91,848 88,034
Total assets less current liabilities 814,312 717,409

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 499,331 455,230

Capital and reserves
Share capital non-equity 16 - -

Income and expenditure account 17 66,481 79,738

Revaluation reserve 17 248,500 182,441

Consolidated funds 314,981 262,179
814,312 717,409

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 23 July 2015 and signed on its behalf by: 

Company Number: 28496R

Balance Sheets

Valerie Owen OBE
Chair

John Synnuck
Chief Executive

Jamie Smith
Company Secretary
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Balance Sheets

Association balance sheet

Note 2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties at valuation 11b 725,027 630,919

Other tangible fixed assets 11c 4,415  4,407

Investment in subsidiaries 11d 14,312 6,350

Total fixed assets 743,754 641,676
Current assets
Properties held for sale 12 30,405    36,834

Debtors due within one year 13a 16,878    12,957

Debtors due after one year 13b 32,090 34,685

Cash at bank and in hand 20,004 19,302

99,377 103,778
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14     (21,052) (21,240)

Net current assets 78,325 82,538

Total assets less current liabilities 822,079 724,214

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 499,305  455,189

Capital and reserves
Share capital non-equity 16 - -

Income and expenditure account 17 74,274 86,584

Revaluation reserve 17 248,500 182,441

Association funds 322,774 269,025
822,079 724,214

The notes on pages 39 to 66 form part of the financial statements. 

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 23 July 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Company Number: 28496R

Valerie Owen OBE
Chair

John Synnuck
Chief Executive

Jamie Smith
Company Secretary
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Note 2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities A 24,686 44,028

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 95 139

Interest paid (15,057) (16,002)

Exceptional finance charges (21,976) -

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and 
servicing of finance

(36,938) (15,863)

Taxation
Corporation tax paid - (56)

Capital expenditure
Payments to acquire housing property assets (44,956) (32,732)

Capital grants received 11,683 7,873

Capital grants repaid (1,589) (732)

Payments to acquire other fixed assets (411) (462)

Receipts from sale of housing properties 4,153 5,250

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure (31,120) (20,803)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing (43,372) 7,306
Financing
Housing loans received 374 97

Housing loans repaid (105,700) (30,000)

Proceeds from bond issue 148,440 -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 43,114 29,903
Decrease in cash (258) (22,597)

Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash Flow Statement
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Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Operating surplus 24,906 23,069

Depreciation 8,044 7,355

Increase in debtors (4,887) (6,041)

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 3,232 10,042

Movement in work in progress and properties for sale (6,609) 9,603

Net cash inflow from operating activities 24,686 44,028

A. Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Decrease in cash in the year (258) (22,597)

(258) (22,597)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from increase in debt financing (42,825) 31,750

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (43,083) 9,153
Movement in net debt in the year (43,083) 9,153

Net debt at 1 April (431,697) (440,850)

Net debt at 31 March (474,780) (431,697)

B. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

At 1 April 
2014
£’000

Cash flow

£’000

At 31 March 
2015
£’000

Cash 20,370 (258) 20,112

Debt due after more than one year (412,565) (45,175) (457,740)

PFI loan (36,479) 2,350 (34,129)

Finance leases (3,023) - (3,023)

Total net debt (431,697) (43,083) (474,780)

C. Analysis of change in net debt
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with 
the Statement of Recommended 
Practice for Registered Social 
Landlords updated in 2012 (the 
‘SORP’) and applicable financial 
reporting standards, and comply with 
the Accounting Direction for Private 
Registered Providers of Social 
Housing (2012).  

A summary of the more important 
accounting policies, which have 
been applied consistently, are set out 
below. 

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements are 
prepared on the historical cost basis 
of accounting as modified by the 
revaluation of housing properties. 

Going concern

Following a review of the Group 
business plan, based on normal 
business planning and control 
procedures, the members of 
the Board have a reasonable 
expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue 
its operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. On this basis, 
the financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis 
on the assumption that the Group will 
continue to trade for the foreseeable 
future.

Group structure and basis of 
consolidation

Swan Housing Group (Swan) 
came into existence in 1994. 
The Group is required by the Co-
operative and Community Benefits 
Society Act 2014 to prepare Group 
accounts. The Group financial 
statements incorporate the financial 
statements of the parent, Swan 

1. Principal accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Housing Association Limited, and 
its subsidiaries.  All the Group 
members’ results are presented as 
operations under common ownership 
and control in accordance with the 
requirements of Financial Reporting 
Standard 2 “Accounting for subsidiary 
undertakings”.

The results of businesses acquired 
or disposed of in the year are 
consolidated from or up to the 
effective date of acquisition or 
disposal respectively. The net 
assets of businesses acquired are 
incorporated in the consolidated 
accounts at their fair values at the 
date of acquisition. Transactions and 
balances between Group companies 
are eliminated. 

Goodwill

Goodwill is the difference between 
the cost of an acquired entity over 
the aggregate of the fair value of 
that entity’s identifiable assets and 
liabilities.  Positive goodwill is shown 
on the balance sheet as an asset and 
is amortised evenly over its estimated 
useful economic life.  In addition to 
systematic amortisation, the book 
value is written down to recoverable 
amount when any impairment is 
identified.  Goodwill on acquisitions 
is amortised over 20 years.  In the 
opinion of the Board, this represents 
a reliable estimate of the period over 
which the Group will derive direct 
economic benefit from the goodwill 
acquired as part of these businesses. 

Fixed assets and depreciation

Completed general needs and 
supported housing properties are 
valued on an Existing Use Value 
– Social Housing (EUV-SH) basis 
every year.  The aggregate surplus 
or deficit on revaluation is the 
difference between the cost of the 
property less capital grants received 
and depreciation and the amount of 
the valuation. The change in value 
has been credited to a revaluation 
reserve. 

Where properties fall under the 
scope of component accounting 
the Group separately identifies the 

Completed NHS key worker and 
market rented properties are stated 
at cost and depreciation is charged 
on a straight line basis over the lease 
term.

Housing properties under 
construction are stated at cost 
less social housing and other 
capital development grants and 
are transferred to ‘Completed 
Schemes’ once they are available 
for letting.  No depreciation is 
provided on housing properties under 
construction.

Where properties are sold the portion 
of the revalued cost of sale that is 
in excess of the historic cost of sale 
for the property is released from the 
revaluation reserve and is transferred 
to the Income and Expenditure 
Account.   

For other tangible fixed assets, 
depreciation is charged on a 
straight line basis over the expected 
economic useful lives of the assets at 
the following annual rates:  

major components which comprise 
its housing properties, and charges 
depreciation, so as to write-down 
the cost of each component to 
its estimated residual value, on a 
straight line basis, over its estimated 
useful economic life.

Where social housing grant has 
been allocated to a component; the 
depreciable amount is arrived at on 
the basis of original cost, less the 
proportion of social housing grant 
and other grants attributable to the 
component, less residual value.

The Group depreciates the major 
components of its housing properties 
at the following annual rates: 

Structure 0.80%

Bathrooms 3.33%

Kitchens 5.00%

Electrics 3.33%

Boiler 6.66%

Windows 3.33%

Central Heating 2.50%

Freehold land is not depreciated

Legal Status

The Association was incorporated 
under the Industrial and Provident 
Societies Act 1965 which was 
consolidated into the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Society Act 
2014 during the year.
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Freehold 
offices valued 
at over £1 
million

0.8% on valuation

Freehold 
offices not 
valued (or less 
than £1 million)

0.8% on cost

Office 
equipment and 
fittings

20% on cost

Computer 
equipment

25% on cost

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Impairment

Impairment is defined as a reduction 
in the recoverable amount of a fixed 
asset below its carrying value. 

Housing properties, including those 
with individual components, which 
are depreciated over a period in 
excess of 50 years are subject to 
impairment reviews annually. Other 
assets are reviewed for impairment if 
there is an indication that impairment 
may have occurred. 

Where there is evidence of 
impairment, fixed assets are written 
down to their recoverable amount, 
being the higher of the net realisable 
value or the value in use to the 
Group. Any such write down is 
charged to operating surplus.

Software

Software expenditure is only 
capitalised where the underlying 
system represents new functionality 
and can be demonstrated to provide 
operational efficiencies. All other 
software expenditure is written off in 
the year in which it is incurred.

Shared ownership properties

The cost of shared ownership 
properties are split between current 
and fixed assets on the basis of 
the percentage of the property sold 
from the forecast first tranche sale. 
Proceeds from the first tranche 
sale of properties sold on shared 
ownership leases are recognised in 
the Income and Expenditure Account 
and shown in turnover. 

Any subsequent sale of the 

remaining element of the shared 
ownership property is accounted 
for as a fixed asset disposal with 
any grant allocated to the property 
recycled and shown in Creditors. 

Any surpluses on disposal are 
recognised in the Income and 
Expenditure Account.

Properties for sale

Shared ownership first tranche 
sales, completed properties for 
outright sale and property under 
construction are valued at the lower 
of cost or net realisable value. Cost 
comprises materials, direct labour 
and direct development overheads. 
Net realisable value is based on 
estimated sales price after allowing 
for all further costs of completion and 
disposal.

Work in Progress consists of land 
and build costs already incurred on 
current developments. This is held 
at the lower of cost or net realisable 
value.

Private sales

Revenue from private housing sales 
is recognised at legal completion, 
net of incentives. Revenue from 
land sales is recognised on the 
unconditional exchange of contracts. 
Profit is recognised on a unit by unit 
basis.

Operating Leases

Rentals payable under operating 
leases are charged to the Income 
and Expenditure Account on a 
straight line basis over the life of the 
lease.

Turnover

Turnover represents rental income 
receivable, income from private sales 
and shared ownership first tranche 
sales, fees, revenue grants from 
local authorities, the HCA and other 
income. It does not include proceeds 
from the sale of the Association’s 
housing properties, the net gain or 
loss from which is shown after the 
operating surplus in the Income and 
Expenditure Account.  

For the Forest Gate PFI, Swan has 
adopted a policy of accounting for the 

housing management and Decent 
Homes construction works on a 
separable basis. The unitary charge 
received under the contract has 
been split according to the total costs 
of the separable elements of the 
contract.  Income and costs incurred 
on housing management will be 
recognised as incurred.  

The performance of the Decent 
Homes construction works is 
forecast, including an allowance 
for risks, and a proportion of the 
resulting surplus taken in the year 
based on the percentage of works 
completed. Full provision is made 
for all known or expected losses 
immediately once such losses are 
foreseen. 

Government grants

Revenue grants are credited in 
proportion to the expenditure to 
which they relate and are treated as 
income to the Association.  Capital 
grants are shown in the balance 
sheet as a deduction from the 
capital asset to which they relate.  
Grants received in advance are 
treated as creditors in the balance 
sheet to be matched against future 
capital expenditure as it is incurred.  
Housing Association Grant (HAG) is 
included under Social Housing Grant 
heading.

Social Housing and other 
capital development grants 
may be repayable under certain 
circumstances, primarily following 
the sale of a property. Provision for 
repayment in the Recycled Capital 
Grant Fund is made in the Balance 
Sheet when properties which have 
previously received grant funding are 
sold.

Interest

Interest income is recognised when 
receivable.  Interest payable is 
accrued daily. Interest on the net 
borrowing of the Group as a whole 
is capitalised to the extent that the 
borrowing relates to development 
costs less capital grants received 
in relation to incomplete properties 
under construction or refurbishment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)
The premium arising on the issue of 
the bond, is being spread evenly over 
the life of the bond, with a resulting 
increase in finance costs.

Investments

Investments represent amounts 
subscribed as shared capital to, 
or on-lent, by the Association to 
its subsidiaries under the Group 
financing arrangements.

Development on-costs

Costs associated with development 
projects are capitalised where they 
are directly attributable to bringing 
the properties into working condition 
for their intended use.  Such costs 
generally include professional fees, 
directly attributable staff salary 
costs incurred in administering the 
development programme and loan 
interest attributable to the scheme.  
Costs incurred on schemes which 
are identified as abortive are written 
off in the year in which the scheme is 
classified as abortive.

Major repairs and improvements

Major repairs and improvements are 
capitalised to the extent that they 
extend the useful economic life of a 
property, increase the potential rental 
or sale value of a property or reduce 
future repair costs of the property. 
Major repairs in relation to the 
properties that fall under the scope 
of component accounting are written 
off over the periods disclosed in the 
accounting policy above. All other 
major repairs are written off in line 
with the property to which they relate. 
In other circumstances major repairs 
and improvements are charged to the 
Income and Expenditure Account as 
incurred.

Pensions

Swan Housing Association Limited 
participates in a multi-employer 
defined benefit scheme, the Social 
Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS).  
It has not been possible to identify 
the share of underlying assets and 
liabilities belonging to individual 
participating employers therefore the 
scheme is accounted for as a defined 

contribution scheme.  The income 
and expenditure charge represents 
the employer contribution payable 
to the scheme for the accounting 
period. 

Swan Housing Association Limited 
and Swan New Homes Limited 
currently operate a defined 
contribution benefit schemes for 
active members.

Lease obligations

Where assets are financed by 
leasing arrangements which give 
rights approximating to ownership, 
they are classified as finance leases 
and are treated as if they had been 
purchased outright. The amount 
capitalised is the present value of the 
minimum lease payment during the 
term of the lease. 

The corresponding leasing 
commitments are shown as 
obligations to the lessor. Rentals paid 
under operating leases (including 
those paid under temporary social 
housing leases) are charged to the 
Income and Expenditure Account on 
an accruals basis.

Loan issue costs

Costs in relation to the issuance of 
debt instruments are amortised over 
the life of the instrument or where 
there is an early redemption option, 
to the end of the earliest date the 
option can be exercised.

Rent arrears

A full provision is made against 
former tenant arrears and a phased 
percentage provision is made 
against current tenant balances with 
a maximum of 75% for balances 
outstanding for more than 20 weeks.

Taxation

The charge for taxation for the period 
is based upon the result for the year, 
and includes deferred taxation. As 
a result of the Association’s status 
as a charity the Association is 
largely exempt from taxation. The 
Association’s subsidiaries are subject 

to taxation, but may make Gift Aid 
donations to the Association, which 
reduces their liability to taxation. 

Deferred tax is provided for on a 
full provision basis on all timing 
differences, which have arisen 
but not reversed at the balance 
sheet date.  No timing differences 
are recognised in respect of gains 
on sale of assets where those 
gains have been rolled over into 
replacement assets.  A deferred tax 
asset is not recognised unless it is 
more likely than not that it will be 
recovered.  Any deferred tax assets 
and liabilities recognised are not 
discounted.
  

VAT

The Association and the majority 
of its subsidiaries are included in a 
Group VAT registration in the name of 
Swan Housing Association Ltd. The 
majority of the Association’s income, 
being rents, is exempt for VAT 
purposes, but other Group members 
generate taxable income. This 
combination gives rise to a partial 
exemption calculation.  Expenditure 
for non-taxable activities is therefore 
shown inclusive of VAT and the input 
VAT recovered is credited against 
operating costs.  Expenditure on 
taxable activities is shown exclusive 
of VAT. 

Reserves

The Group establishes reserves for 
specific purposes where their use is 
subject to external restrictions and 
designated reserves where reserves 
are earmarked for a particular 
purpose.  

Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve is the 
difference between the market 
value of housing properties and the 
historical cost carrying value. 
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2015 2014

GROUP Turnover

£’000

Operating 
costs 

£’000

Surplus/ 
(deficit)

£’000

Turnover

£’000

Operating 
costs 

£’000

Surplus/ 
(deficit)

£’000
Income and 
expenditure:
From social housing 
lettings (see note 3)

53,652 (21,596) 32,056 51,927 (19,515) 32,412

Other social 
housing activities:
Supporting People 
contract income

2,104 (2,347) (243) 1,879 (1,994) (115)

Management 
services

- (13,681) (13,681) - (13,668) (13,668)

First tranche shared 
ownership sales

3,904 (4,688) (784) 2,711 (2,988) (277)

Forest Gate Private 
Finance Initiative

6,220 (5,053) 1,167 6,676 (5,834) 842

Other - - - 1 (18) (17)

12,228 (25,769) (13,541) 11,267 (24,502) (13,235)
Non-social housing 
activities
Development and 
other activities

15,907 (9,705) 6,202 26,172 (22,460) 3,712

Commercial lettings 189 - 189 180 - 180

16,096 (9,705) 6,391 26,352 (22,460) 3,892
81,976 (57,070) 24,906 89,546 (66,477) 23,069

Impairment - - - - (2,007) (2,007)

81,976 (57,070) 24,906 89,546 (68,484) 21,062

2. Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus by
class of business

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus by
class of business (continued)

2015 2014

ASSOCIATION Turnover

£’000

Operating 
costs 

£’000

Surplus/ 
(deficit)

£’000

Turnover

£’000

Operating 
costs 

£’000

Surplus/ 
(deficit)

£’000
Income and 
expenditure:
From social housing 
lettings

53,652   (21,596) 32,056 51,438 (19,443) 31,995

Other social 
housing activities:

Supporting People 
contract income

2,104 (2,347) (243) 1,879 (1,994) (115)

Group management 
services

500 (14,181) (13,681) 523 (14,190) (13,667)

First tranche shared 
ownership sales

3,904 (4,688) (784) 2,711 (2,988) (277)

Forest Gate Private 
Finance Initiative

6,220 (5,053) 1,167 6,676 (5,834) 842

Other 6,288 - 6,288 5,119 (743) 4,376

19,016 (26,269) (7,253) 16,908 (25,749) (8,841)
Non-social housing 
activities
Commercial lettings 189 - 189 180 - 180

189 - 189 180 - 180
72,857 (47, 865) 24,992 68,526 (45,192) 23,334

Impairment - - - - (2,007) (2,007)

72,857 (47,865) 24,992 68,526 (47,199) 21,327

Note: Other income includes £6,288k (2014: £5,118k) of Gift Aid receivable from Group companies and £ Nil (2014: 
£743k) of operating cost relating to the surrender of a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Particulars of income and expenditure from lettings

GROUP General 
needs housing 

£’000

NHS Trust key
worker 

£’000

Shared 
Ownership 

£’000

Total 
2015

£’000

Total 
2014

£’000
Rent receivable net 
of identifiable service 
charges

39,579 6,289 1,905 47,773 45,272

Service income 4,395 698 212 5,305 6,125

Net rental income 43,974 6,987 2,117 53,078 51,397
Lease income 574 - - 574 530

Turnover from social 
housing lettings

44,548 6,987 2,117 53,652 51,927

Management (4,077) (648) (196) (4,921) (3,777)

Services (1,965) (312) (95) (2,372) (2,650)

Routine maintenance (2,108) (335) (101) (2,544) (2,635)

Planned maintenance (3,105) (493) (150) (3,748) (2,912)

Property lease charges (213) (34) (10) (257) (97)

Bad debts (218) (35) (10) (263) (151)

Depreciation of housing 
properties

(6,206) (986) (299) (7,491) (7,293)

Operating costs on 
social housing lettings

(17,892) (2,843) (861) (21,596) (19,515)

Operating surplus on 
social housing lettings

26,656 4,144 1,256 32,056 32,412

Void losses (130) (819) (39) (988) (1,030)
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Notes to the Financial Statement

3. Particulars of income and expenditure from lettings
(continued)

ASSOCIATION General 
needs housing 

£’000

NHS Trust key 
worker

£’000

Shared 
Ownership 

£’000

Total 
2015

£’000

Total 
2014

£’000
Rent receivable net 
of identifiable service 
charges

39,579 6,289 1,905 47,773 44,783

Service income 4,395 698 212 5,305 6,125

Gross rental income 43,974 6,987 2,117 53,078 50,908
Lease income 574 - - 574 530

Turnover from social 
housing lettings

44,548 6,987 2,117 53,652 51,438

Management (4,077) (648) (196) (4,921) (3,698)

Services (1,965) (312) (95) (2,372) (2,650)

Routine maintenance (2,108) (335) (101) (2,544) (2,635)

Planned maintenance (3,105) (493) (150) (3,748) (2,919)

Property lease charges (213) (34) (10) (257) (97)

Bad debts (218) (35) (10) (263) (151)

Depreciation of housing 
properties

(6,206) (986) (299) (7,491) (7,293)

Operating costs on 
social housing lettings

(17,892) (2,843) (861) (21,596) (19,443)

Operating surplus on 
social housing lettings

26,656 4,144 1,256 32,056 31,995

Void losses (130) (819) (39) (988) (1,030)

4. Remuneration of officers and senior executives

Parent board members received remuneration of £123k (2014: £99k). Social security costs were £3k. 
Total expenses reimbursed to Board Members were £9k (2014: £7k). 

2015
FTE

2014
FTE

£60,001 to £70,000 4 4

£70,001 to £80,000 4 3

£80,001 to £90,000 2 2

£90,001 to £100,000 1 1

The aggregate amount of directors’ 
remuneration for the year (excluding 
pension contributions and taxable 
benefits) was £1,376k (2014: 
£1,326k). Directors’ pension 
contributions for the year were 

£128k. Directors’ social security costs 
for the year were £196k.

Remuneration of the highest paid 
senior executive (Chief Executive) 
was £204k. In addition a payment 
in lieu of pension contributions of 

£37k was paid in the year. Social 
security costs were £32k. The full 
time equivalent (FTE) number of staff 
(excluding directors), who receive 
remuneration:
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5. Staff numbers and costs

The average numbers of persons 
employed by the Group expressed 

                      GROUP                         GROUP
2015
FTEs

2015
No.

2014
FTEs

2014
No.

Administration staff 236 261 250 266

Maintenance 6 7 7 7

Caretakers, cleaners and 
wardens

68 77 57 57

310 345 314 330

The aggregate payroll cost of these persons was as follows:

                                                                                 GROUP
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Wages and salaries 11,949 11,428

Social security costs 1,294 1,132

Other pension costs 979 927

14,222 13,487

In addition during the year a total of £36k (2014: £46k) was paid in relation to severance and redundancy costs. 

6. Sales of housing assets
                     GROUP                       ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Disposal proceeds 5,188 5,464 6,821 7,745

Carrying value of fixed assets (4,786) (4,766) (6,419) (7,047)

402 698 402 698

both in full time equivalents and 
numbers of staff members (including 

senior executives), analysed by 
category were as follows: 
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7. Interest receivable
                  GROUP                   ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Bank interest receivable 95 139 56   66  

Interest on inter-group lending - -    894 530  

95 139  950    596

8. Interest payable and similar charges
                       GROUP                           ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Bank loans and overdrafts 16,038 16,434 16,032     16,434

Bond 387 - 387 -

Other bank charges 451 598 451      598

Finance lease charges 251 253 251 22

17,127 17,285 17,121 17,054
Less: interest capitalised (1,584) (1,609) (1,584)     (1,609)

15,543 15,676 15,537     15,445

8a. Exceptional costs
                 GROUP                  ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Loan capital restructuring costs 24,985 - 24,985 -

In March 2015 the Group restructured 
its syndicated loan facility and issued 
a £250m bond of which £100m was 
retained.  

£2.3m of the exceptional loan 
capital restructuring costs relate 

to the expensing of loan issue 
costs deferred in 2008 at the time 
of an earlier refinancing.  £2.2m 
of the exceptional costs relate to 
transaction fees associated with the 
2015 restructure of the syndicated 
bank facility and the issuance of 

the bond.  The remaining £20.4m 
of capital restructuring costs relate 
to the settling of the mark to market 
position on a £60m hedge with the 
Co-Op Bank.
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10. Taxation
GROUP  ASSOCIATION

2015

£’000

2014

£’000

2015

£’000

2014

£’000
Tax (credit)/charge on (deficit)/surplus on ordinary 
activities
Current tax:
Arising from earlier periods - (23) - -

Current year movements - - - -

Deferred tax:
Arising from earlier periods - - - -

Current year movements - - - -

Tax (credit)/charge on (deficit)/surplus on ordinary 
activities

- (23) - -

Tax reconciliation to current tax charge/(credit)
(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before tax (15,125) 6,223 (14,178) 7,176

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities multiplied by stand-
ard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21% (2014: 23%)

(3,176) 1,431 (2,977) 1,650

Unrecognised losses utilised (12) - - -

Charitable tax exemption 3,188 (1,431) 2,977 (1,650)

Adjustment in respect of prior periods - (23) - -

Total current tax (credit)/charge for year - (23) - -

Deferred tax relating to tax losses of £426k (2014: £481k) have not been recognised since, although the Board expect 
the subsidiary businesses to generate future profits capable of offset by the losses, they do not consider that the 
standards required for recognition in accordance with FRS19 have yet been met.

9. (Deficit)/surplus for the year
                 GROUP                  ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

The (deficit)/surplus for the year is stated 
after charging/(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration on audit services (excl 
VAT):

   Audit of Group 79 68 79 68

   Other services 65 27 65 27

Depreciation on housing properties 7,491 7,355 7,491 7,300

Depreciation on component replacement 257 256 257 256

Depreciation on other fixed assets    414 453    401 441

Operating surplus Forest Gate PFI (1,167) (842) (1,167) (842)

Operating lease charges    217 246    217 223

Impairment - 2,007 - 2,007

Group Service fees from other Group 
undertakings (note 23)

- - (500) (523)

Amortisation of goodwill 70 66 - -
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11. Intangible fixed assets
a) Goodwill on Acquisition 

GROUP Goodwill

£’000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 1,035

Additions -

Disposals -

                

At 31 March 2015 1,035
                

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014 (121)

Charge for year (70)

                

At 31 March 2015 (191)
                

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2015 844

At 31 March 2014 914
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties

GROUP General/
special 
needs

£’000

Completed 
shared 

ownership 
housing 

properties

£’000

Completed 
NHS 

key worker

£’000

Properties 
held under 

finance 
leases

£’000

Under 
construction

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014 508,076 55,486 64,079 2,786 30,478 660,905

Additions 3,811 - - - 42,779 46,590

Disposals/transfers (1,651) (2,100) - - (1,633) (5,384)

Completions         7,832 1,408 - - (9,240) -

Current asset 
movement

- - - - 1,755 1,755

Valuation adjustment 61,630 (844) - - - 60,786

At 31 March 2015 579,698 53,950 64,079 2,786 64,139 764,652
Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 (168) - (8,809) (3) - (8,980)

Disposals 96 21 - - - 117

Charge for year (6,025) (322) (1,386) (15) - (7,748)

Valuation adjustment 5,929 301 - - - 6,230

At 31 March 2015 (168) - (10,195) (18) - (10,381)
Social Housing 
Grant:
At 1 April 2014 - - (7,858) (2,359) (11,371) (21,588)

Received during year - - - - (11,683) (11,683)

Disposals 711 878 - - - 1,589

Completions (2,263) (236) - - 2,499 -

Valuation adjustment 1,552 (642) - - - 910

At 31 March 2015 - - (7,858) (2,359) (20,555) (30,772)

b) Housing properties
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
b) Housing properties (continued)

GROUP General/
special 
needs

£’000

Completed 
shared 

ownership 
housing 

properties

£’000

Completed 
NHS key 

worker

£’000

Properties 
held under 

finance 
leases

£’000

Under 
construction

£’000

Total

£’000
Other public sector 
grants:
At 1 April 2014 - - (4,316) - (1,987) (6,303)

Received during year - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - -

Completions - - - - - -

Valuation adjustment - - - - - -

At 31 March 2015 - - (4,316) - (1,987) (6,303)
Cost or Valuation:
At 31 March 2015 579,530 53,950 41,710 409 41,597 717,196
At 31 March 2014 507,908 55,486 43,096 424 17,120 624,034

Cost or valuation 
at 31 March 2015 is 
represented by:
Gross cost 676,461 44,477 64,079 2,786 64,139 851,942

Less: Depreciation (43,960) (3,142) (10,195) (2,377) - (59,674)

Less: Social Housing 
Grant

(237,003) (13,112) (7,858) - (20,555) (278,528)

Less: other public 
sector grant

(30,829) (7,912) (4,316) - (1,987) (45,044)

Revaluation reserve 214,861 33,639 - - - 248,500

579,530 53,950 41,710 409 41,597 717,196
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
b) Housing properties (continued)

ASSOCIATION General/
special 
needs

£’000

Completed 
shared 

ownership 
housing 

properties

£’000

Completed 
NHS key 

worker

£’000

Properties 
held under 

financial 
leases

£’000

Under 
construction

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014 508,076 55,486 64,079 2,786 37,363 667,790

Additions 3,811 - - - 43,725 47,536

Disposals (1,651) (2,100) - - (1,633) (5,384)

Completions 7,832 1,408 - - (9,240) -

Current asset 
movement

- - - - 1,755 1,755

Valuation adjustment 61,630 (844) - - - 60,786

At 31 March 2015 579,698 53,950 64,079 2,786 71,970 772,483
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2014 (168) - (8,809) (3) - (8,980)

Disposals 96 21 - - - 117

Charge for year (6,025) (322) (1,386) (15) - (7,748)

Valuation adjustment 5,929 301 - - - 6,230

At 31 March 2015 (168) - (10,195) (18) - (10,381)
Social Housing 
Grant:
At 1 April 2014 - - (7,858) (2,359) (11,371) (21,588)

Received during year - - - - (11,683) (11,683)

Disposals 711 878 - - - 1,589

Completions (2,263) (236) - - 2,499 -

Valuation adjustment 1,552 (642) - - - 910

At 31 March 2015 - - (7,858) (2,359) (20,555) (30,772)
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
b) Housing properties (continued)

ASSOCIATION General/
special 
needs

£’000

Completed 
shared 

ownership 
housing 

properties

£’000

Completed 
NHS key 

worker

£’000

Properties 
held under 

financial 
leases

£’000

Under 
construction

£’000

Total

£’000
Other public sector 
grants:
At 1 April 2014 - - (4,316) - (1,987) (6,303)

Received during year - - - - - -

Disposals - - - - - -

Completions - - - - - -

Valuation adjustment - - - - - -

At 31 March 2015 - - (4,316) - (1,987) (6,303)
Cost or valuation:
At 31 March 2015 579,530 53,950 41,710 409 49,428 725,027
At 31 March 2014 507,908 55,486 43,096 424 24,005 630,919
Cost or valuation 
at 31 March 2015 is 
represented by:
Gross cost 676,461 44,477 64,079 2,786 71,970 859,773

Less: Depreciation (43,960) (3,142) (10,195) (2,377) - (59,674)

Less: Social housing 
grant

(237,003) (13,112) (7,858) - (20,555) (278,528)

Less: Other public 
sector grant

(30,829) (7,912) (4,316) - (1,987) (45,044)

Revaluation reserve 214,861 33,639 - - - 248,500

579,530 53,950 41,710 409 49,428 725,027
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
b) Housing properties (continued)

The Association has received Social 
Housing Grant from the Homes and 
Communities Agency and other 
grants from local authorities.

A number of the properties that have 
been grant funded by the HCA or its 
predecessors are subject to secure 
tenancies which confer on the tenant 
the right to purchase the property 
they occupy. If a tenant exercises 
their right to purchase the property 
the Association is liable to repay to 
the HCA an amount that is broadly 
equivalent to the grant advanced in 
respect of the property.

Similar obligations to the tenant 
exist in respect of properties built 
under the right to acquire legislation 
although in these cases there is no 
obligation to the HCA.

Under most circumstances, if 
housing properties are disposed of, 
Social Housing Grant is recycled or 
becomes repayable to the HCA.

Included within additions are 
development administration costs of 
Group: £1,606k, Association: £490k, 
(2014 Group: £1,276k, Association: 
£1,276k) and interest capitalised of 
Group: £1,584k, Association: £1,584k 
(2014 Group: £1,609k, Association: 
£1,609k). The interest capitalisation 

was calculated using the Group’s 
average cost of floating rate 
borrowing each month.  The average 
rate during the year was 3.85% 
(2014: 3.98%).

The maintenance and repair 
expenditure on housing properties 
for the Group is £8.3m, Association 
£8.3m (2014 Group: £7.6m, 
Association: £7.6m).  £3.8m of 
this expenditure is capitalised 
(2014: £3.4m) for both Group and 
Association.

All completed housing stock of the 
Group was valued as at 31 March 
2015, on the basis of Existing Use 
Value for Social Housing (EUV-SH) 
for accounts purposes at Group: 
£631.8m, Association: £631.8m 
(2014 Group: £561.8m, Association 
£561.8m). The £70m increase in 
the year is primarily attributable 
to a lower discount rate due to a 
sustained reduction in funding costs. 

The valuation was undertaken in 
accordance with the RICS Appraisal 
& Valuation Manual (‘The Red 
Book’) where EUV-SH is defined 
at UKPS1.13.  In determining this 
valuation, the valuers made use of 
discounted cashflow methodology 
and the key assumptions made 

concerned the level of future rents, 
future repair and maintenance 
costs, the rate of turnover of existing 
tenants and the discount rate.  

The assumed discount rate was 
4.75% real, assumed RPI base is 
2.50% and rental increases have 
been included in line with current 
practice.  The valuation was carried 
out by FPD Savills, Chartered 
Surveyors of 25 Finsbury Circus, 
London EC2M 7EE. 

Completed NHS Keyworker 
properties are carried at cost less 
depreciation.

During the current year, the Group 
and Association have not made 
any impairment adjustments (2014: 
£2.0m).
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
c) Other fixed assets

GROUP Freehold offices & 
temporary 

buildings

£’000

Computer 
equipment

£’000

Office equipment 
and fittings

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 4,098 4,343 1,630 10,071

Additions - 121 290 411

At 31 March 2015 4,098 4,464 1,920 10,482
Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 (732) (3,564) (1,348) (5,644)

Charge for year (63) (246) (105) (414)

At 31 March 2015 (795) (3,810) (1,453) (6,058)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 3,303 654 467 4,424
At 31 March 2014 3,366 779 282 4,427

ASSOCIATION Freehold offices & 
temporary 

buildings

£’000

Computer 
equipment

£’000

Office equipment 
and fittings

£’000

Total

£’000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 4,098       4,294 1,627 10,019

Additions  -   119 290 409

Disposals -   - - -

At 31 March 2015 4,098    4,413 1,917 10,428
Depreciation
At 1 April 2014     (732) (3,532)     (1,348) (5,612)

Charge for year  (63)     (233) (105)        (401)

At 31 March 2015 (795)   (3,765)    (1,453)    (6,013)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 3,303    648 464 4,415
At 31 March 2014 3,366      760 281 4,407
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11. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued)
d) Investments

ASSOCIATION
£’000

Loans to Group companies

At 1 April 2014   6,350    

Advanced to Group member 7,950       

At 31 March 2015 14,300 

Shares in Group companies

At 1 April 2014 -

Subscribed in Group member 12

At 31 March 2015 12

During the year ended 31 March 2015 net advances of £7,950k have been provided to Swan New Homes.  These 
advances relate to the development programmes and associated working capital requirements for Swan New Homes. 
A £12k investment was made in Swan Housing Capital Plc, this entity was incorporated during the year to issue the 
Bond.

The principal fully owned subsidiaries are:

Company Activity Country of registration
Swan New Homes Limited Build of new homes United Kingdom

Swan Commercial Services Limited Design and build contractor United Kingdom

Hera Management Services Limited* Property management United Kingdom

Vivo Support Limited* Care and support services United Kingdom

Pike Housing Services Limited Property letting United Kingdom

Swan Housing Capital plc Treasury United Kingdom

12. Properties held for sale and work in progress
                     GROUP                        ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Shared ownership properties
Completed properties - 1,668 - 1,668

Work in progress 30,405 35,166 30,405 35,166

30,405 36,834 30,405 36,834
Private developments
Completed properties - 914 - -

Work in progress 22,014 9,817 - -

52,419 47,565 30,405 36,834

*Owned indirectly – 100% owned by Swan New Homes Limited
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13. Debtors

                          GROUP                         ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2013
£’000

Gross arrears of rent and 
service charges

1,412 1,449 1,412 1,449

Less: provision for bad 
and doubtful debts

(630) (769) (630) (769)

Net arrears of rent and 
service charges

 782 680  782 680

Other debtors 6,995 12,322 5,241 11,582

Prepayments and 
accrued income

10,804 621 10,759 574

Amounts owed by Group 
undertakings

- - 96 121

18,581 13,623 16,878 12,957

14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
                        GROUP                         ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Trade creditors 4,040 2,809 2,355       1,370

Other taxes - 12 - -

Other creditors 6,673 6,599      3,873 4,644

Deferred income 1,921 2,100 1,921 2,099

Amounts owed to Group 
undertakings

- -      5,169 6,219

Accruals and deferred 
income

17,322 15,793 5,837 4,995

Interest payable 2,284 1,913 1,897 1,913

Corporation tax - - - -

32,240 29,226      21,052 21,240

a) Due within 1 year

b) Due after 1 year
Other prepayments and 
accrued income - PFI

32,090 34,685 32,090 34,685

Equity retained in 
properties sold

886 1,017 - -

32,976 35,702 32,090 34,685
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
                        GROUP                          ASSOCIATION

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Bank loans 309,300 412,565 309,300 412,565

Bond 148,440 - - -

Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 148,440 -

Finance leases 3,023 3,023 3,023 3,023

PFI loan 34,129 36,479 34,129 36,479

Deferred consideration 26 41 - -

Disposals proceeds funds 1,665 1,688 1,665 1,688

Recycled capital grants fund 2,748 1,434 2,748 1,434

CNT clawback - - - -

499,331 455,230 499,305 445,189
Bank loans and bond, not 
repayable by instalments:
Bank loans falling due two to five 
years

2,232 8,200 2,232 8,200

Bank loans failing due for 
repayment after five years

307,068 406,800 307,068 406,800

Bond falling due for repayment after 
five years

150,000 - 150,000 -

Less: issue costs - (2,435) - (2,435)

         bond re-offered spread (1,560) - (1,560) -

457,740 412,565 457,740 412,565

The bank loans above are drawn 
from bi-lateral loan facilities of 
£339.3m. Bank loans are secured by 
charges on specific properties and 
floating charges, and are repayable 

                      GROUP                       ASSOCIATION
Finance leases 2015

£’000
2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Finance leases 3,023 3,023 3,023 3,023

                       GROUP                      ASSOCIATION
PFI loan 2015

£’000
2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Falling due less than one year 2,107 2,349 2,107 2,349

Falling due within one to two years 2,185 2,107 2,185 2,107

Falling due two to five years 5,453 5,676 5,453 5,676

Falling due for repayment after five 
years

24,384 26,347 24,384 26,347

34,129 36,479 34,129 36,479

Finance leases represent the capital 
funding advanced under finance 
leases for a total of 35 properties.  
These entail the funder (Bradford 
and Bingley plc) purchasing the 

The PFI loan is provided by Royal Bank of Scotland plc and is due to expire in 2028.  Interest is paid at 6.21% for the 
remainder of the facility.

at variable and fixed rates of interest 
between 1.71% and 6.10%. On 5 
March 2015 the Group issued a 
£250m bond with £100m retained. 
The bond has coupon rate of 

3.625%, matures in 2048 and has a 
life of 33 years. Security for the bond 
has been provided in the form of 
housing assets.

freehold of properties on the open 
market and leasing them to Swan 
Housing Association for 25 years. At 
the end of the lease term Bradford 
and Bingley plc has a put option 

to sell the properties and Swan 
Housing Association has a call option 
to purchase the properties, both at 
historic cost. 
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16. Non-equity share capital - Group and Association
GROUP AND ASSOCIATION 2015

£
2014

£
Outstanding at 1 April 7   6

Allocated during the year 2 5

Cancelled during the year (2) (4)

Shares of £1 each allotted, issued and full paid at 31 
March

7 7

The shares have limited rights. They 
carry no entitlement to a dividend, 
are not repayable and do not carry 

17. Reserves - Group
GROUP Income and 

expenditure 
account 

£’000

Revaluation 
reserve

£’000

Total

£’000
As at 1 April 2014 79,738 182,441 262,179
Revaluation surplus in year - housing properties - 67,927 67,927

Deficit for year (15,125) - (15,125)

Transfer of depreciation relating to revaluation 1,764 (1,764) -

Realisation of revaluation surplus on properties sold in 
the year

104 (104) -

As at 31 March 2015 66,481 248,500 314,981

15. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
(continued)

                        GROUP                         ASSOCIATION
Analysis of Recycled 
Capital Grant Fund:

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Balance at 1 April 1,434 703 1,434 703
Additions to the fund 1,599 731 1,599 731

Utilised during the year (285) - (285) -

Balance at 31 March 2,748 1,434 2,748 1,434

                      GROUP                          ASSOCIATION
Analysis of CNT 
clawback:

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Balance at 1 April - - - -
Additions to the fund 253 436 253 436

Utilised during the year (253) (436) (253) (436)

Balance at 31 March - - - -

                       GROUP                        ASSOCIATION
Analysis of Disposals 
Proceeds Fund:

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Balance at 1 April 1,688 1,348 1,688 1,348
Additions to the fund 905 340 905 340

Utilised during the year (928) - (928) -

Balance at 31 March 1,665 1,688 1,665 1,688

rights to participate in a winding up.  
They carry an entitlement to vote 
at the annual and special meetings 

of the Association. When shares 
are cancelled, the amount paid 
up becomes the property of the 
Association.
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A designated reserve has been set 
up to pay for the replacement of 
white goods when required in the 

ASSOCIATION Income and 
expenditure 

account 
£’000

Revaluation 
reserve

£’000

Total

£’000
As at 1 April 2014 86,584 182,441 269,025

Revaluation surplus in year - housing 
properties

- 67,927 69,927

Deficit for the year (14,178) - (14,178)

Transfer of depreciation relating to revaluation 1,764 (1,764) -

Realisation of revaluation surplus on properties 
sold in the year

104 (104) -

As at 31 March 2015 74,274 248,500 322,774

17. Reserves - Association

18. Commitments
i) Capital Commitments at the end of the financial year for which no provision has been made:

                      GROUP                        ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Contracted but not provided 64,684 57,701 18,522 30,041

Authorised but not contracted 9,364 15,071 - 4,858

74,048 72,772 18,522 34,899

The Board considers that all expenditure will be financed through a combination of grants of £10.7m (2014: £10.6m) 
and sales income of £63.3m (2014: £62.2m).

ii) Annual commitments for the year from the balance sheet date under non-cancellable operating leases 
for equipment, motor vehicles and commercial office space are as follows:

                    GROUP                     ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Operating lease which expire:
Within one year 487 329 487  329

In the second to fifth years inclusive 399 244 399     244

886 573 886     573

17. Reserves - Group (continued)

19. Contingent liabilities
Performance bonds

Swan Housing Association has 
issued performance bonds in respect 
of highway and other works which 
are part of development schemes in 
Basildon and Havering for £797,313 
and £499,000 respectively which may 
be retained by the local authorities 

supported housing schemes where 
required by the lease. At 31 March 
2015 this amounted to £670k (2014: 

£670k) and is included with the 
Income and Expenditure account.

in the event of works required under 
the construction programme not 
being completed.  At present the 
Association is expecting to complete 
these works satisfactorily. 

The bonds expire at various dates, 
the latest of which is November 2018. 

Social Housing and other 
capital development grants 
may be repayable under certain 
circumstances, primarily following the 
sale of a property. 
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20. Analysis of completed property units
At 31 March 2015 the Group’s housing stock comprised:

GROUP                          Owned 
                         number of units

                         Managed 
                        number of units

2015 2014 2015 2014
Social housing:
General needs 6,386 6,382 - -

Affordable 215 212 - -

Shared ownership 631 645 - -

Sheltered (elderly) 79 80 - -

Other Supported housing 417 417 - -

NHS key worker 
accommodation

930 929 - -

London Borough of 
Newham

- - 1,328 1,333

Total social housing 8,658 8,665 1,328 1,333
Non-social housing:
Garages 241 241 198 198

Sold to leaseholder with 
retained freehold

700 687 - -

Total housing stock 9,599 9,593 1,526 1,531

ASSOCIATION                         Owned 
                        number of units

                            Managed 
                          number of units

2015 2014 2015 2014
Social housing:
General needs 6,386 6,382 - -

Affordable 215 212 - -

Shared ownership 631 645 - -

Sheltered (elderly) 79 80 - -

Other Supported housing 417 417 - -

NHS key worker 
accommodation

930 929 - -

London Borough of 
Newham

- - 1,328 1,333

Total social housing 8,658 8,665 1,328 1,333
Non-social housing:
Garages 241 241 198 198

Sold to leaseholder with 
retained freehold

700 687 - -

Total housing stock 9,599 9,593 1,526 1,531
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21. Legislative provisions
The Association is registered under 
the Co-operative and Community 
Benefit Society Act 2014 with the 

22. Related party disclosures
The Association has provided car 
purchase loans to one executive 
director, the terms and interest rate is 
the same as that available to staff.

The Association had the following 
activity with non-regulated entities in 
the Group. Swan New Homes Limited 

24. Pensions
Swan Housing Association 
participates in the Social Housing 
Pension Scheme (SHPS or the 
Scheme). The Scheme is funded 
and is contracted out of the State 
Pension scheme. 

SHPS is a multi-employer defined 
benefit scheme. Employer 
participation in the Scheme is subject 
to adherence with the employer 
responsibilities and obligations as set 
out in the ‘SHPS House Policies and 
Rules Employer Guide’.

The Scheme operated a single 
benefit structure, final salary with a 
1/60th accrual rate until 31 March 
2007. From April 2010 the following 
have been available:

• Final salary with a 1/60th 
accrual rate, closed to new 
entrants 31 March 2010

• Final salary with a 1/80th 
accrual rate, closed to new 
entrants 31 March 2010

An employer can elect to operate 

different benefit structures for their 
active members and their new 
entrants. An employer can only 
operate one open defined benefit 
structure at any one time. An open 
benefit structure is one which new 
entrants are able to join.

Swan Housing Association currently 
operates defined contribution 
structure for active members. 

The Trustee commissions an 
actuarial valuation of the Scheme 
every three years. 

The main purpose of the valuation 
is to determine the financial position 
of the Scheme in order to determine 
the level of future contributions 
required, in respect of each benefit 
structure, so that the Scheme can 
meet its pension obligations as they 
fall due. From April 2007 the split of 
the total contribution rate between 
member and employer is set at 
individual employer level, subject to 
the employer paying no less than 

23. Subsidiaries
Swan Housing Association provides 
staff and other services to its 

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Amount charged:

Pike Housing Services Limited - 23

Swan Commercial Services Limited 150 150

Swan New Homes Limited 350 350

500 523

£1,983k (2014: £2,632k) land, 
property sales and management 
service, Swan Commercial 
Services Limited £33,293k (2014: 
£26,479k) construction activities 
and management service, Hera 
Management Services Limited £126k 

(2014: £152k) property management 
services, Vivo Support Limited £513k 
(2014: £118k) care services

50% of the total contribution rate. 
From 1 April 2010 the requirement 
for employers to pay at least 50% of 
the total contribution rate no longer 
applies. 

The actuarial valuation assesses 
whether the Scheme’s assets at 
the valuation date are likely to be 
sufficient to pay the pension benefits 
accrued by members as at the 
valuation date. Asset values are 
calculated by reference to market 
levels. Accrued pension benefits 
are valued by discounting expected 
future benefit payments using a 
discount rate calculated by reference 
to the expected future investment 
returns.

During the accounting period 
Swan Housing Association paid 
contributions at the rate of 1% to 
15.05%, member contributions varied 
between 1% and 9.65%.

It is not possible in the normal course 
of events to identify on a reasonable 

reference 28496R, and with the 
Homes and Communities Agency 
under reference L4145 under the 

Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 
as a Registered Provider.

subsidiaries under the terms of 
procedure agreements.  Details 

of the amount charged to the 
subsidiaries within the Group are as 
follows: 
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Valuation Discount Rates: % pa

Pre-retirement 7.0

Non-pensioner post retirement 4.2

Pensioner post 
retirement

4.2

Pensionable earnings growth 2.5 
(per annum for 3 years, then 4.4)

Price inflation (RPI) 2.9

Pension increases:
Pre 88 GMP 0.0

Post 88 GMP 2.0

Excess over GMP 2.4

The financial assumptions underlying the valuation as at 30 September 2011 were as follows:

Financial Assumptions

Expenses for death-in-service 
insurance, administration and 
Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 
are included in the contribution rate.

The valuation was carried out 
using the following demographic 
assumptions:

and consistent basis the share of 
the underlying assets and liabilities 
belonging to individual participating 
employers. The Scheme is a multi-
employer scheme, where the assets 
are co-mingled for investment 
purposes, and benefits are paid out 
of total Scheme assets. Accordingly, 
due to the nature of the Scheme, 
the accounting charge for the 
period under FRS17 represents the 
employer contribution payable. 

The last formal valuation of the 
Scheme was performed as at 30 
September 2011 by a professionally 

24. Pensions (continued)
qualified Actuary using the Projected 
Unit Method. The market value 
of the Scheme’s assets at the 
valuation date was £2,062 million. 
The valuation revealed a shortfall of 
assets compared with the value of 
liabilities of £1,035 million, equivalent 
to a past service funding level of 
67.0%.

The Scheme Actuary has prepared 
an Actuarial Report that provides an 
approximate update on the funding 
position of the Scheme as at 30 
September 2013. Such a report is 
required by legislation for years in 

which a full actuarial valuation is not 
carried out. The market value of the 
Scheme’s assets at the date of the 
Actuarial Report was £2,718 million. 
The Actuarial Report revealed a 
shortfall of assets compared with the 
value of liabilities of £1,151 million, 
equivalent to a past service funding 
level of 70%.

Mortality pre-retirement – 41% 
SAPS S1 Male / Female All 
Pensioners (amounts), Year of Birth, 
CMI_2009 projections with long term 
improvement rates of 1.5% p.a. for 
Males and 1.25% p.a. for Females.
Mortality post retirement – 97% 
SAPS S1 Male / Female All 

Pensioners (amounts), Year of Birth, 
CMI_2009 projections with long term 
improvement rates of 1.5% p.a. for 
Males and 1.25% p.a. for Females.
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24. Pensions (continued)
The long-term joint contribution rates required from April 2013 from employers and members to meet the cost of future 
benefit accrual were assessed at:

Benefit Structure Long-term Joint Contribution Rate (% of pensionable salaries)
Final salary with a 1/60th accrual 
rate

19.4

Final salary with a 1/70th accrual 
rate

16.9

Career average revalued earnings 
(CARE) with a 1/60th accrual rate

18.1

Final salary with a 1/80th accrual 
rate

14.8

Career average revalued earnings 
(CARE) with a 1/80th accrual rate

14.0

Career average revalued earnings 
(CARE) with a 1/120th accrual rate

9.7

to be taken to make up the shortfall. 

Following consideration of the results 
of the actuarial valuation it was 
agreed that the shortfall of £1,035 

If an actuarial valuation reveals 
a shortfall of assets compared to 
liabilities the Trustee must prepare a 
Recovery Plan setting out the steps

million would be dealt with by the 
payment of deficit contributions as 
shown in the table below:

From 1 April 2013 to 30 September 
2020

A cash amount(*) equivalent to 7.5% of
Members’ Earnings per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% per 
annum each 1 April)

From 1 October 2020 to 30 
September 2023

A cash amount(*) equivalent to 3.1% of
Members’ Earnings per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% per 
annum each 1 April)

From 1 April 2013 to 30 September 
2026

£30,640,000 per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3% per annum 
each 1 April; first increase on 1 April 2014)

(*) The contributions of 7.5% will be 
expressed in nominal pound terms 
(for each Employer), increasing 
each year in line with the Earnings 
growth assumption used in the 30 
September 2008 valuation (i.e. 
4.7% per annum). The contributions 
of 3.1% will be calculated by 
proportioning the nominal pound 
payment at the time of the change. 
Earnings at 30 September 2008 (for 
each Employer) will be used as the 
reference point for calculating these 
contributions.

These deficit contributions are 
in addition to the long-term joint 
contribution rates.

The next formal valuation of the 
Scheme will begin later this year and 
will give an update on the financial 
position as at 30 September 2014. 
The results of this valuation will be 
available in Spring 2016.
Employers that participate in the 
Scheme on a non-contributory basis 
pay a joint contribution rate (i.e. a 
combined employer and employee 
rate). 

Employers that have closed the 
defined benefit section of the 
Scheme to new entrants are required 
to pay an additional employer 
contribution loading of 2.5% to 
reflect the higher costs of a closed 
arrangement.

A small number of employers are 
required to contribute at a different 
rate to reflect the amortisation of a 
surplus or deficit on the transfer of 
assets and past service liabilities 
from another pension scheme into 
SHPS.

New employers that do not transfer 
any past service liabilities to the 
Scheme pay contributions at the 
ongoing future service contribution 
rate. This rate is reviewed at each 
valuation and new employers joining 
the Scheme between valuations up 
until 1 April 2010 do not contribute 
towards the deficit until two 
valuations have been completed after 
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24. Pensions (continued)
their date of joining. New employers 
joining the Scheme after 1 April 2010 
will be liable for past service deficit 
contributions from the valuation 
following joining. Contribution rates 
are changed on the 1 April that falls 
18 months after the valuation date.

A copy of the Recovery Plan, setting 
out the level of deficit contributions 
payable and the period for which 
they will be payable, must be sent 
to The Pensions Regulator. The 
Regulator has the power under Part 
3 of the Pensions Act 2004 to issue 
scheme funding directions where it 
believes that the actuarial valuation 
assumptions and/or Recovery Plan 
are inappropriate. For example the 
Regulator could require that the 
Trustee strengthens the actuarial 
assumptions (which would increase 
the Scheme liabilities and hence 
impact on the Recovery Plan) or 
impose a schedule of contributions 
on the Scheme (which would 
effectively amend the terms of the 
Recovery Plan).

As a result of pension scheme 
legislation there is a potential debt on 
the employer that could be levied by 
the Trustee of the Scheme. The debt 
is due in the event of the employer 
ceasing to participate in the Scheme 
or the Scheme winding up.

The debt for the Scheme as a whole 
is calculated by comparing the 
liabilities for the Scheme (calculated 
on a buy-out basis i.e. the cost of 
securing benefits by purchasing 
annuity policies from an insurer, plus 
an allowance for expenses) with the 
assets of the Scheme. If the liabilities 
exceed assets there is a buy-out 
debt.

The leaving employer’s share of 
the buy-out debt is the proportion 
of the Scheme’s liability attributable 
to employment with the leaving 
employer compared to the total 
amount of the Scheme’s liabilities 
(relating to employment with all the 
currently participating employers). 
The leaving employer’s debt 
therefore includes a share of any 

‘orphan’ liabilities in respect of 
previously participating employers. 
The amount of the debt therefore 
depends on many factors including 
total Scheme liabilities, Scheme 
investment performance, the 
liabilities in respect of current and 
former employees of the employer, 
financial conditions at the time of the 
cessation event and the insurance 
buy-out market. The amounts of debt 
can therefore be volatile over time.

Swan Housing Association has been 
notified by The Pensions Trust of 
the estimated employer debt on 
withdrawal from the Social Housing 
Pension Scheme, based on the 
financial position of the Scheme as at 
30 September 2014. At this date the 
estimated employer debt for Swan 
Housing Association was £24,141k.

25. Financial assets and liabilities

                    GROUP                     ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Floating rate 20,112 20,370 34,316 25,652

Other than short term debtors, 
financial assets held are investments 

in other entities and cash deposits 
placed on call. They are sterling 

denominated and the interest rate 
profile at 31 March was:

The assets attract interest rates that vary with bank rates.

Financial assets
Our treasury strategy is in the Operating and Financial Review.
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The floating rate financial liabilities 
comprise bank loans that bear 
interest at rates based on the three 
month LIBOR.

The Group’s financial liabilities are 
sterling denominated. After taking 

into account various interest rate 
swaps, the interest rate profile of 

the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 
March was:

Financial liabilities excluding trade creditors – interest rate risk profile

                    GROUP                     ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Floating rate 146,800 177,500 146,800 177,500

Fixed 346,629 273,979 346,629 273,979

Total 493,429 451,479 493,429 451,479

The fixed rate financial liabilities 
have a weighted average interest 
rate of 4.83% (2014: 5.70%) and the 
weighted average period for which it 

is fixed in 22 years (2014: 16 years).

The debt maturity profile is shown in 
note 15.

The Group has undrawn committed 
borrowing facilities. The facilities 

available at 31 March in respect of 
which all conditions precedent had 

been met were as follows:

Borrowing Facilities

                    GROUP                     ASSOCIATION
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Expiring in more than 2 years 30,000 65,000 30,000 65,000

In addition to the above the Group 
has £100m of retained bonds which 

are available for issue subject to the 
appropriate security being available. 

The retained bonds expire in 2020.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

  GROUP
Book value Fair value
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Primary financial 
instruments held or issued 
to finance the Group’s 
operations
Current asset trade 
investments

20,112 20,370 20,112 20,370

Current portion of long term 
borrowings

2,107 2,350 2,178 2,431

Long term borrowings 491,322 449,129 593,761 522,913

25. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

ASSOCIATION
Book value Fair value
2015
£’000

2014
£’000

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

34,316 25,652 34,316 25,652

2,107 2,350 2,178 2,431

491,322 449,129 593,761 522,913

The fair value of long term 
borrowings includes the mark to 

market position of the embedded 
interest rate swaps. There is no 

requirement to post collateral against 
the out of the money mark to market 
positions.

26. Post balance sheet event
In July 2015 the new Government 
announced its Budget.  Included in 
the announcement were reductions 
in benefit caps, changes to Pay to 

Stay, a review of lifetime tenancies 
and rent reductions of 1% each year 
for four years. We have reviewed 
the impact of these announcements 

and have put plans in place which 
we believe will substantially mitigate 
the impact of these changes on our 
business plan.
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